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Message from Chairman of the Board of Directors

Overall, the Thai economy maintained constant growth in
2007 as primarily resulted from an increase of export sector which
its expansion has been reported satisfactorily. While the surplus
current account and the international reserve fund maintained at high
level, the inflation rate reported lower than the last year even though
it has been accelerated in the fourth quarter of year as resulted by
the effect of higher price of the fuel.

The potential factors affecting the domestic economics
included high price of fuel, political uncertainty, flood disaster
occurred in many provinces, the appreciation of Thai Baht, all these
factors have influenced the decision on investment.

The appreciation of Thai Baht has affected the overall Thai
economy. The export sector information indicated a downturn of
exportation. Meanwhile, other business sectors were uncertain. The
Thai Bath fluctuation has leaded to more difficulties in business
planning and management.

Despite some influential factors mentioned above, the
C.I. Group Public Company Limited maintained its operation
satisfactorily. The overall revenues valued 1,309.47 million Baht in
2007, higher than a previous year, and net profit raised from 15.38
million Baht in 2006 to 107.11 million Baht in 2007, indicating the
continuity of business growth. The company’s excellent performance
in 2007 have resulted from the sales expansion by 21.35% which
were greater than the previous year. The cost of goods sold to sale
revenue ratio reduced by 6.99% in 2006, while sale and
administrative expenditures reduced by 1.11%.

By this moment, the company would like to thank all
executives and employees for constant synergetic collaboration and
contribution that makes strong and sustain company growth until
today, also thank all shareholders, trade partners, and concerned
persons for ongoing contribution and entrustment. The company

promises to further strive for business development and growth.

Vo b

Dr. Vorapol Socatiyanuraksa

Chairman of the Board of Directors
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Audit Committee’s Report
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Audit Committee’s Report

In 2007, The Audit Committee of the company is comprised
of 3 independent people: Dr. Vorapol Socatiyanuraksa who is the
Chairman of the Audit Committee, Mr. Chatree Ratanawong, and Mr.
Supasak Chirasavinuprapand who are the Audit Committee members
and Mrs. Em-orn Chotiyaputta who is a secretary. The scope of
responsibility and duty of the Audit Committee is to abide by the

rules, regulations, and approval of the Board of Directors.

The Audit Committee has attended the meeting 5 times
with management team, internal auditor, and company auditor. The
activities are concluded as follow:

1. Review balance sheet quarterly and annually and then
comment on financial transaction, conflict of interest
transaction. The information disclosure has been done
properly and accurately as per the certified accounting
system and the requirement of the information disclosure.

2. Consider and approve the operation scope, annual audit
plan, and also provide suitable manpower and also consider
the operational report and the independent of the internal
audit office.

3. Review and follow up if the problem has been resolved
within the time frame given as agreed in the meeting.

4. Meet with the concerned executives, auditor, and internal
audit and provide useful suggestion to the management
team who will later develop and implement the suggestion
properly.

5. Provide internal control system as well as internal audit to
the company properly and efficiently to be in the standard
of internal audit set forth.

6. Allow the company to abide by SET regulations, laws or

concerned business laws.

7. Give an opinion in considering, selecting, setting the
remuneration, and appointing the company auditor and
propose to Board of Directors for further consideration in

the Annual General Meeting.

Vg b

Dr. Vorapol Socatiyanuraksa

Chairman of the Audit Committee
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Dr. Vorapol Socatiyanuraksa Age : 53 years old
Position : Chairman of the Board of Directors

: -None-

: Ph.D. (Finance) The Wharton School,

University of Pennsylvania U.S.A.

% of share holding
Highest Education
Working Experience : Director, National Petro-Chemical Public
Company Limited
Other current positions
Chairman of the Board of Directors : C.l.Group Public Company Limited
Chairman of the Audit Committee : C.|.Group Public Company Limited
Director : United Securities Public
Company Limited
Director & Audit Committee : Jasmin International Public
Company limited
Professor : Faculty of Business Administration,
National Institute of Development
Administration
Training course : Thai Institute of Directors (IOD) :
- Director Accreditation Program (DAP) Class 1/2003
- Director Certification Program (DCP) Class 42/2004
- The Role of the Chairman Program (RCP) Class 10/2004
- Role of the Compensation Committee (RCC) Class 1/2006

- Audit Committee Program Class 6/2005
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- Director Accreditation Program (DAP) ju‘ﬁ 27/2004

Mr. Aree  Poomsanoh Age : 53 years old
: Director
19.71%
1 B.B.A. (Administration), Sukhothai Thammathirat

Position
% of share holding
Highest Education
University
Working Experience  : Chairman of the Board of Directors,
C.1.Group Public Company Limited
Other current positions :
Chairman of Executive Board : C.I.Group Public Company Limited

Managing Director : C.1.Group Public Company Limited

Director : AC Square Energy Ltd.
Director : A.S.A. Karnchang Ltd.
Director : Sirakorn Ltd.

Director : A.S.A. Property Ltd.
Director : AS.A. Real Estate Ltd.
Director : V&A High Tech Ltd.

Training course : Thai Institute of Directors (IOD) :

- Director Accreditation Program (DAP) Class 27/2004
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- Director Accreditation Program (DAP) ‘g"%ﬁ 27/2004

Mr. Taweesak Wangkorkiat Age : 56 years old

Director

13.96%

B.S., Faculty of Industrial Technology,

Position

% of share holding

Highest Education
King Mongkut Institute of Technology,
Pranakorn Nua Campus

Other current positions :

Vice Chairman of the Board of Director : C.l.Group Public Company Limited
Executive Committee : C.1.Group Public Company Limited
Training course : Thai Institute of Directors (IOD) :

- Director Accreditation Program (DAP) Class 27/2004
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- Director Accreditation Program (DAP) juﬁ 11/2004

Mr. Supasak Chirasavinuprapand Age : 44 years old
Position Independent Director
-None-

M.S. (Law) Arizona State University, U.S.A

% of share holding
Highest Education
Working Experience Partner, International Legal Counselors Thailand Ltd.
Other current positions :

Vice Chairman of the Board of Director : C.l.Group Public Company Limited
Audit Committee : C.L.Group Public Company Limited
Partner . Royal Advocates International

Limited
Training course : Thai Institute of Directors (I0D) :

- Director Accreditation Program (DAP) Class 11/2004
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- Director Accreditation Program (DAP) i;uﬁ 27/2004

Mr. Theera Poomsanoh Age : 51 years old

. Director

1 3.45%

: M.B.A. (Marketing), National Institute of Development

Position
% of share holding
Highest Education
Administration
Working Experience : Managing Director, C.I.Group Public Company Limited
Director : AVV Co,, Ltd.
Other current positions :
Executive Committee C.1.Group Public Company Limited
Director MDICP Holdings Co., Ltd.
Director . AC Square Energy Ltd.
Director & Accountant : Air-Conditioning & Refrigeration Group
The Federation of Thai Industries
Director North East Consultant Ltd.
Training course : Thai Institute of Directors (IOD) :

- Director Accreditation Program (DAP) Class 27/2004
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- Director Accreditation Program (DAP) ju‘ﬁ 11/2004

Mr. Chatree Ratanawong Age : 54 years old
Position . Independent Director
% of share holding : -None-
Highest Education M.S. (Mechanical) King Mongkut's Institute of
Technology, North Bangkok
Working Experience . Associate Dean (General Affairs)
King Mongkut's Institute of Technology, North Bangkok
Other current positions :
Audit Committee : C.1.Group Public Company Limited
Professor Level 7, Faculty of Mechanical Enginee :
King Mongkut's Institute of Technology, North Bangkok
Training course : Thai Institute of Directors (I0D) :

- Director Accreditation Program (DAP) Class 11/2004
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Mr. Wongsawat Wongsawang Age : 57 years old

Position : Director

% of share holding 1 7.98%

Highest Education : Vocational Certificate (Mechanic)
Don Bosco Vocational School

Working Experience

Director . AVV Co., Ltd.

Other current positions :
Executive Committee . C.l.Group Public Company Limited

Training course : Thai Institute of Directors (I0D) :

- Director Accreditation Program (DAP) Class 27/2004
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- Director Accreditation Program (DAP) i;‘u.ﬁ 60/2006

Mrs. Chankapaw Dissakul Age : 42 years old
Position : Director
% of share holding 1 0.12%
Highest Education : M.S. (Financial / Economics / Business Administration)
Emporia State University, USA
Working Experience
General Manager / Marketing Manager / Administrative Manager
: C.1.Group Public Company Limited
Other current positions:
Executive Committee 1 C.I.Group Public Company Limited
Training course : Thai Institute of Directors (IOD) :

- Director Accreditation Program (DAP) Class 60/2006
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APEWUSMS / Executive Management

1. w1ea3e WNl&WIz / Mr. Aree Poomsanoh
AL / Position . NITUNNIHAANIT / Managing Director
QRIGIGANI9NIIANET / Highest Education : Sty saEunegsna 4121n139AnTs
B.B.A.(Administration),
NWNINENAE41laYiaITNNE91T / Sukhothai Thammathirat

University

2. WEEIuY aal / Mr. Shannon Jinn
AWML / Position L HTR8NgINNNTHAANTT (@UgINATTUdNaLEINA) /
Assistant to Managing Director-International
QGIAANINNNIANEN / Highest Education © BBy satEniegana a121n1Inana /
B.B.A.(Administration),Charles Sturt University

3. uﬂiﬁ‘a"g@ %‘ia?iu / Mr.Weerawut Chingtin

BN / Position : éﬁmm?ﬁfﬂﬂmamuﬂﬁuﬁmi / General Manager of Operation
waz Fnensgannieelneingeaine / Acting Maintenance
Department Manager

QFGIAANINNIANEN / Highest Education © fBynyneE AgANARTRRAINIINLITUTA (2. 1.4ARaNA M)
anntiumalulaginszaauindnmezuanivile)/
B.S.(Mechanical Technology) King Mongkut’s
Institute of Technology, North Bangkok

4. uEdUNEN WIUTaAN / Mr. Sonthaya Parnitchudom
ALY/ Position . gAnnnsvinlaneanuEnng / General Manager of Administration
waz fNNI9EAansntIuAIuATAAIRLAN / Acting

Transport & Warehouse Department Manager
qm’?@;qz@mmqmiﬁﬂm / Highest Education : ﬂ?ﬁiyryﬂm?‘ ATARANUANTTH (BSIE), Don Bosco University / College
5. welan ’Sﬁl’i‘ﬁ}ﬂ‘éﬂgﬂﬂ / Mr. Sawai Chatchairungruang
AWML / Position : gAmnnavinllanennsRuuazansaume

General Manager of Finance & Information Technology

QRIGIgANI9NIIANET / Highest Education s dSeyaynin anentinyd aWnasnsaiuwianende
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6. wanas lRnzmnz / Mrs.Em-orn Chotiyaputta

AN / Position

QAGIGANINIIANET / Highest Education

7. W9E1INIG3 2198zaa / Miss Patcharee Kaola-or

AL / Position

QRGIGANI9NIIANET / Highest Education

a

gann1sdntineunssaseunie’lu / Internal Audit Office
Manager

ey n 8129199870 ARELTUN99INA
NUINLNALTINAMN / M.B.A. (Marketing),

Faculty of Business Administration, Ramkhamhaeng University

gannnseleWmuNgsnia / Business Development

Department Manager

Ystyrysis @1ty Ansiisunsgsna
NUNINLIRLTINALNG / B.S. (Accounting), Faculty of Business

Administration, Ramkhamhaeng University

8. UNERANTUN NZARITTU / Mr. Chalermchon Malisuwan

Q

AL / Position

QRGIGANI9NIIANET / Highest Education

9. UNEFNUNE ﬁ’mﬂﬁuﬁ/ Mr. Sommai Sattayapan

AN / Position

QW@\?Q@VH\?H’W%HT&’] / Highest Education

Q U

10. w1 §9nd (BaswAIANa / Mr. Suwit Thiensawetkul

AN / Position

a

QW@QQ@VH\?HW?‘EHT&’] / Highest Education

a U

uvivn @la.nduU d1im (uvzw)

BaAN191999% — CI | / Factory Manager - Cl | Ua¥
HAAN19E1EI919UNUNIIHAR / Production Planning Department
Manager

UStYrysiTaN1IAINITHARAIINIT ALUEAAINITHANGRNT
WUNINELNALUNERIANARAT / B.E. (Industrial Engineering),

Faculty of Engineering, Kasetsart University

o

E;;I’j AN9999U - CI Il / Factory Manager - Cl I
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o

E;;I’j AN999U - Cl I/ Factory Manager Cl - Il

Fay a1 2IN139AN199ARINTIN ADUELITUNIFIND

o
a |

NMINENABATLYN / M.S. (Industrial Management),

Faculty of Business Administration, Sriprathum University
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11. AT.LANBNT F’i”}‘kg‘n / Dr.Em-Amorn Kumnuch
AWML / Position L fnwnsgdanisdhessuunazmalulagansaume
(Acting System and Information Technology
Department Manager)
QRGIGANI9NIIANET / Highest Education : fStyry1ien 4127390 N1SANEN
University of North Texas, USA.

12. uNEvIANA uRadns1s / Mr. Taweesak Nateesatidtarn
AWML / Position D AUNULTINNNUANLAASLAZLITVINTADINN /
Safety and Quality Management Representative
wazineInIsgannI s lseiunazALANADININ
Acting Quality Assurance and Quality
Control Department Manager

QRGIGANI9NIIANET / Highest Education By a1213AINITNERAITUNNT ARNAINIRININANENAR

13. wiayniEiay LBanaa1n / Mr.Boonyeuen lamsa-ard
FINLMS / Position : éﬁmmiﬂ’mmam - Cl | / Production Department Manager - Cl |

a

QRGIGANI9NIIANET / Highest Education - dsenAtlenaNenTnduge ananeNicmesgana
anszwalulatansaumalsaFaumaluladuauneay
Diploma Degree (Business Computer)

Technology Leamthong School

14. w1gAsey #eY / Mr.Jarun Tanu
UV / Position : r:;’%'mmi‘ﬁ]ﬂﬂwam - Cl Il / Production Department Manager - Cl |I

a

QRGIEANI9NIIANET / Highest Education : dsennafienafendn ananden daaliin

a LY

a o a =
ANEINEIN muﬁﬂnmm

15. w1eAsnAad WANHE95M / Mr. Chiradul Pitaktam
AWML / Position : nmnsgAanniseeRAanITHLAZIRERRUY
Acting Engineering & Research Development
Department Manager

QAGIGANI9NIIANET / Highest Education By MBA. annuiuRnimuLTINIAans
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16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

UIYLENE %'Nq'ls / Mr. Yongyut Im-urai
FIUULS / Position  gaannstheninensymna
Human Resources Department Manager
QFRIAANINNNIANEN / Highest Education o URrynynln nstdmaninennanyeel AnsAnenAans
annuduf UL AN aRS

UNHBINGTO L&IUD8 / Mrs. Pongpunnee Sangnoy

¥ o

ZaIZIN / Position : Q@mmidlmﬁjmi / Administration Department Manage
uwarinINIgaANI i uazAnTe/
Acting Procurement & Purchasing Department Manager

QFRGIAANINNNIANEN / Highest Education s Bayyn anandgszananans aningndeyusiil

UNEATY INTSULEY / Mr. Sanun Petchnumyen
RIS / Position : gAnnnseheniIRaIAkAZgNANENS /
Marketing and Customer Relation Department Manager

QFRIAANINNNIANEN / Highest Education - 1Byysaagrnansign nenduagnszuas

waaydn 'a%’maﬁqqssm / Mr. Anucha Charaslertsuwan
FWML / Position : gAnniseheganasinalszing /
Foreign Business Department Manager

QFRGIAANINNNIANEN / Highest Education : 1ByyeE wyedAans Nundnenaungemn

UNUANIAUS ’qmu%"ﬁﬁ/ Mrs. Saowakon Udomrat

o

ZaIZIN / Position : £§ mma‘tllmﬁm;l% / Accounting Department Manager

QFRGIAANINNNIANEN / Highest Education - ByyeT @a1n1iyd wnndngndu sy

4

u’Nﬂ‘a‘xn&IW%‘ NINA / Mrs. Prathumporn Taweephol

o

AL / Position : £§ AN1INNENT9RU / Finance Department Manager

QFRGIAANINNNIANEN / Highest Education - Byyes nsdnnsiiall snanendeglaiesssuniane

4
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Management Structure

Management Structure

Committee

follows:

1.

There are 3 committee namely, the Board of Directors, the Executive Committee, and the Audit Committee as detail

The Board of Directors

The Board of Director is comprised of 8 people as name follows:

Name-Surname Position
1. Mr. Vorapol Socatiyanuraksa Independent Director / Chairman of the Board Directors
2. Mr. Supasak Chirasavinuprapand Independent Director / Vice Chairman
3. Mr. Taweesak Wangkorkiat Vice Chairman
4. Mr. Aree Poomsanoh Director
5. Mr. Theera Poomsanoh Director
6. Mr. Wongsawat  Wongsawang Director
7. Mrs.Chankapaw  Dissakul Director
8. Mr. Chatree Ratanawong Independent Director

Authorized Directors

Authorized Directors who can sign to comply with the company are Mr. Aree Poomsanoh or Mr. Theera Poomsanoh or

Mrs.Chankapaw Dissakul co-sign with either Mr. Taweesak Wangkorkiat or Mr. Wongsawat Wongsawang, totally two persons and

affix the company seal.

Scope of Authority and Duty of the Board of Directors

1.

To manage the company honestly in accordance with laws, objectives, obligations and resolutions of Shareholder Meeting
and to take precautions in order to protect the company benefits.

To authorize an appointment a set of directors as Executive Committee to execute one or several tasks in order to
implement the work assigned by the Board of Directors as well as to authorize an appointment the Chairman of Executive
Committee together with other committee such as Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee as deemed
appropriate.

To set objective, procedure, policy, plan, and company budget and monitor the management of the Board of Executive
Committee or the assigned person to follow with the policy set forth.

To consider and review the approved policy, direction, strategy, business plan, and annual budget, investment on big project
proposed by the Board of Executive Committee.

To continuously follow up on the operation as plan and budget set forth.

To consider and approve other activities concerning the company and have it done to benefit the company.

Except for the following tasks which can be implemented only under the resolutions from Shareholder Meeting and under

the stipulation that any director or person who might be involved with either conflicts of interests or any other beneficial conflicts

with the company or subsidiary company shall not be granted the right to vote in that matter.

Annual Report 2007 C.l. Group Public Company Limited



Management Structure

(a) Matters stipulated by Laws must be obtained the resolutions from Shareholder Meeting.

(b) Transactions that any directors are involved with either conflict of interest or any other beneficial conflicts particularly
stated by Laws or Stock Exchange Specifications must be obtained the resolutions from Shareholder Meeting.
The execution of the following matters must be approved by the Committee Meeting and the Shareholder Meeting with

the votes not less than 3 over 4 of total votes of the eligible shareholders present in the meeting.

(a) To sale or transfer all or important part of the company business.

(b) To purchase or acquire of other company or private company.

(c) To make, to amend or to abolish the contract to rent all or some important part of company business. The appointment
of other person who will manage company business or the merging with other person in order to share profit and loss.

(d) To amend the Memorandum of Associations or Objectives.

(e) To increase or decrease capital, to issue debenture, to merge or to terminate the business.

2. The Board of Executive Committee

The Board of Executive Committee is comprised of 5 people as name follows:

Name-Surname Position
1. Mr. Aree Poomsanoh Chairman of Executive Committee
2. Mr. Taweesak  Wangkorkiat Executive Committee
3. Mr. Theera Poomsanoh Executive Committee
4. Mr. Wongsawat Wongsawang Executive Committee
5. Mrs.Chankapaw Dissakul Executive Committee

Scope of Authority and Duty of the Board of Executive Committee

1. To manage the company honestly in accordance with laws, objectives, obligations, resolutions of Shareholder Meeting and
resolutions of the Board of Directors Meeting and to take precaution to protect the company benefits.

2. To determine organization structure, authorization lines and to ensure its coverage of details in terms of selection, training,
employment, reshuffle and dismissal of company personnel.

3. To plan and to determine the business plan, business strategies and annual budget and then to propose to the Board of
Directors for approval. Also, to consider and to approve the allocation of annual budget, to amend, adjust, or increase annual
expense budget in case of urgent needs and then to present to the Board of Directors accordingly.

4. To audit and monitor the company business operation, policy, and administrative guidance in a manner that is compatible to
business situation.

5. To audit and to monitor in order to ensure that the company is operated in accordance with the approved business plans.

6. To consider company large-scaled investment project and have it presented to the Board of Directors for approval.

7. To authorize and to approve the following financial implementations.

a. The Board of Executive Committee is entitled to approve unlimited financial amount in case that such implementation is
stated in the business plan or annual budget.

b. If not stated in documents mentioned in (1), the Board of Executive Committee is entitled to approve an amount not
exceeding 100 million Baht. Such approval shall include the approval on the expense occurred from general operations.
Investment on permanent property, loan, acquisition of credit including provision of guarantee, etc. and acknowledge the

Board of Directors.
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8.

Management Structure

To implement other tasks as periodically instructed by the Board of Directors.

However, The Chairman of the Board of Executive Committee or the Board of Executive Committee are not entitled to

approve any matters that might be a conflicts of interest to themselves or other party or matters that may cause any beneficial

conflicts whatsoever with the company or subsidiary company.

3.

The Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is comprised of 3 people as name follows:

Name-Surname Position
1. Mr.Vorapol  Socatiyanuraksa Chairman of Audit Committee
2. Mr.Chatree Ratanawong Audit Committee
3. Mr.Supasak Chirasavinuprapand Audit Committee

Audit Committee Qualification

Audit committee consists of at least three independent committees who are on 2-year term of designation. The company

has recruitment policy for audit committee who qualifications shall meet the followings;

1.

Scope

3)

4)

Holding not exceeding 5% shares of paid-up capital amount of the company and its affiliates, joint-ventures, or related
companies (inclusive of a number of shares hold by those concerned persons)

Neither participation in top management of the company and its affiliates, joint-ventures, related companies or major
shareholders, nor being salary employee, staff or consultant of company and its affiliates, joint-ventures, related companies
or major shareholders

Neither partaking in the interest nor beings stakeholder directly and indirectly in relation to finance and administration of the
company and its affiliates, joint-ventures, related companies or major shareholders, and must not participate in such interest
and stakes within one year prior to being appointed as audit committee, unless the Board of Director, under deliberate
discretion, assumes that such conduct shall not affect the performance and independent comment by the audit committee.
Not being a next of kin or relative of the executives or company’s major shareholders

Not being appointed as fiduciary proxy for the directors, major shareholders, or shareholders who are associated with major
shareholder.

Independently perform duty and express the opinion or report the Performance assigned by the Directors, and not being

subjected to the executives or major shareholders or shareholder’s relatives.

of Authority and Duty of the Board of Audit Committee

To ensure that the company has accurately and adequately disclosed its financial statements to public by cooperating with
public auditor and directors in charge to prepare financial report quarterly and annually. The Audit Committee may suggest
the auditor to examine or investigate any matters considered to be necessary and important during the auditing period.

To ensure that there are suitable and effective internal control and auditing system in the company by co-auditing with
public auditor and internal auditor.

To ensure that the company is operated in accordance with Laws concerning properties and stock exchange, stipulations of
Stock Exchange Market and other laws involving company business.

To select and make suggestions regarding the appointment of company auditor together with the audition fee by taking into
consideration the credibility, personnel sufficiency, work volume of auditing firm as well as experience of the personnel to

be appointed as company’s auditor.
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Management Structure

5) To consider the disclosure of company information should there be any connected transaction or contradictory transaction to
be accurate and complete.

6) To conduct other tasks as instructed by the Board of Directors approved by the Audit Committee, i.e. to make revisions on
financial policies and risk management, make revisions on compliance with business ethics, make co-revisions with company
directors on important issues which need to be disclosed to public stated by laws, for instance, report and analysis of
management team.

7) To prepare the Audit Committee activity reports by disclosing on company’s annual report. The report shall be signed by
the Chairman of Audit Committee and should contain following information:

- Comments on the preparation process and disclosure of information in company’s financial statement to be accurate
and reliable.

- Comments on the sufficiency of company’s internal control system.

- Reasons to believe that the company’s auditor is appropriate to be re-appointed for another term.

- Comments on the compliance with Laws concerning properties and stock exchange, stipulations of Stock Exchanges
Market and other laws involving company business.

- Report on other matters that shareholders and investors should be concerned within a scope of duties and

responsibilities appointed by the Board of Directors.

Scope of Authority and Duty of the Managing Director

1) To direct and oversee the administration and the management to be in accordance with policies, plans and budget
approved by the Board of Directors or the Board of Executive Committee and report the company performance to the
Board of Directors or the Board of Executive Committee consecutively.

2) To consider the suitability of an annual budget allocation prepared by the Board of Executive Committee prior to
propose to the Board of Directors.

3) To authorize an approval on the overall purchase and the expenditure on general matters as stated in the Company
Authority Table.

4) To consistently evaluate the company operation in order to prevent risks from various factors inside and outside the
company.

5) To authorize the issuance of orders, regulations, announcements, memorandum so that the company is operated in
compliance with the policy or for company’s interest.

6) To provide an authority and/or to sub-authorize to other persons to carry out specific task. Such sub-authorization shall
be under the scope of authorization as stated in the given power of attorney and/or shall be comply with the
regulations, specifications or order stated by the Board of Directors and/or the company.

7) To implement other tasks as periodically instructed by the Board of Directors or the Board of Executive Committee.

However, the Managing Director is not entitled to approve any matters that might be of a conflict of interests or conflicts

to himself or other party or may cause any beneficial conflicts whatsoever with the company or subsidiary company.

Selection of the Directors
Since there is no particular committee to perform this task, the selection of persons to be appointed as company’s
directors shall be made in Shareholders Meeting. The selection shall be made as per the criteria and method as stated in the

company regulations as follows:
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1) Each shareholder has as many votes as he/she owns share.

Management Structure

2) Each shareholder may use all his votes to elect one or many persons as the company directors; however, no voter may

divide his/her votes among several candidates or allot to one candidate fewer votes than what he/she has.

3) Candidates who receive highest votes shall be elected as directors on a consecutive basis until all required directors during

that meeting is obtained. The Chairman of that meeting shall act as an arbiter in case that equal votes occurred and

numbers of directors exceed the required number of directors.

Executive Remuneration
Remuneration in Cash

Remuneration for the Board of Directors

In 2006 and 2007 , there were 8 directors. The remuneration of directors can be summarized as follows:

2006
Meeting
Name of the Directors Position Gratuity
Allowance
(Baht)
(Baht)
1. Dr. Vorapol Socatiyanuraksa ~ Chairman of the Board Director 30,000 390,000
& Chairman of Audit Committee
2. Mr.Supasak Chirasavinuprapand  Vice Chairman & Independent 30,000 360,000
Director
3. Mr. Taweesak  \Wangkorkiat Vice Chairman 18,000 240,000
4. Mr. Aree Poomsanoh Director 18,000 300,000
5. Mr. Theera Poomsanoh Director 15,000 240,000
6. Mr. Wongsawat \Wongsawang Director 18,000 240,000
7. Mr. Chatree Ratanawong Independent Director 30,000 360,000
8. Mrs.Chankapaw Dissakul Director
*Mr.Pongthep Srichanwong* Director Decease 9,000 240,000
Total 168,000 2,370,000

Remarks: - No.of Attendance include AGM & EGM

2007
Meeting .
No. Gratuity No.
Allowance
of Attendance (Baht) of Attendance
(Baht)
6/6 42,000 415,000 10M
6/6 42,000 360,000 1m
6/6 27,000 240,000 m
6/6 27,000 275,000 1M
6/6 27,000 240,000 m
6/6 27,000 240,000 1m
6/6 42,000 360,000 m
21,000 160,000 AN
2/6
255,000 2,290,000

According to the resolutions of Shareholders Meeting No. 1/2007 held on April 24th, 2007, the annual remuneration of

directors shall not exceed 6 million Baht.

Executive Remuneration

In 2006, there are 15 Executives and In 2007, there are 20 Executives The executive remuneration is summarized as

follows:
Type of remuneration 2006 (Baht)
Salary 20,893,952
Bonus 978,270
Total 21,872,222
No. Executive 15
Annual Report 2007

2007 (Baht)

24,529,292
6,662,233
31,181,625
20
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Nature of Business

Company Profile

The company has registered as a limited company on April 10, 2003 with initial registered capital of 94 Million Baht as a

result of a merger of the C.I. Group and Heat Interchange Co., Ltd. which have shares in the same group, Poomsanoh Group,

Wangkorkiat Group and Wongsawang Group. The major objective for which the company has been established is to produce the

evaporator coil, condenser coil, and chilled water coil, which are components of the air-conditioner, chiller, and heat ventilator, and

other kinds of cooling unit for purpose of domestic and international distribution.

The company profile can be summarized as below;

Year
2003

2004

2005

2006

2007

Crucial Events

Certified by the ISO 9001 : 2000 from AJA Registrars

Merged with the Heat Interchange Co.,Ltd, with paid registered capital of 94 Million Baht

Raise the registered capital from 94 Million Baht to 120 million Baht by which 260,000 ordinary shares
at par value of 100 Baht each have been distributed to the former shareholders proportionately.

UL product quality has been approved according to the U.S.A. Standard for all versions of company’s
products at maximum pressure of not exceeding 540 PSI.

Increased the registered capital to 165 million Baht by which newly 45 million ordinary shares have
been distributed to the general public, company directors and employees and listed in the Stock
Exchange of M.A.I.

Firstly distributed the ordinary stocks of 45 million shares to general public, company directors and
employees on January 28, 2005 at par value of 2.75 Baht each.

Increased the registered capital to 247.50 million Baht by which newly 82,500,000 ordinary shares
have been issued to support the exercise right of the former shareholders at the ratio of 2 ordinary
shares for 1 warrant at zero Baht per unit.

Having been granted issuance of the warrant from the Stock Exchange Committee (SEC) on
December 22, 2006.

Co-investing amount of 13,000 ordinary stocks of the AVV who is the company’s business alliance,
totally valued 11.70 million Baht.

Purchased 1,000 AVV ordinary shares to increase the registered capital, totally valued 0.10 million
Baht.

Launching a new plant located at the Pinthong Industrial Park, Chonburi

Increase the registered capital to 350 million Baht by issuing ordinary shares of not exceeding 85.50
shares at par value of 1 Baht per share for public offering.

Having been granted by the Stock Exchange Committee (SEC) on October 26, 2007 to distribute the
public the ordinary shares of not exceeding 85.50 shares.

Floating the ordinary stocks of the AVV Co., Ltd.
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Investment Structure of Company and Subsidiaries
The C.I. Group Public Company Limited has 35% shares of the paid registered capital of the AVV Co., Ltd, a holding

company, engaging in manufacturing and distributing the OEM-based air-conditioners.

35%




Industry Situation and Competitive

Industry Situation and Competitive

In 2007, the continual growth rate has been indicated for air-conditioners since early year as resulted from the promising
economics in trade partner countries such as E.U. and the Middle East, and confidence in product quality in Thailand. In addition,
supporting factors by global warming has caused the climate in European region hotter, and resulted that production and export
value have been adjusted high to 21% and 42% as compared to year 2006 and 2007. Overall, it is likely that the competition in coil
manufacturing industry has relatively stiff because of the intensive pressure in competition among the manufacturers. This can be
one reason that manufacturers have to produce good as distinctively as to gain the competitive advantage and sales increase. For
industrial tendency in coil products, some Thai operators turn to initiate establishment of their own product brand for domestic sales
and exportation. Some operators become custom-made manufacturers for exportation. Under the Free Trade Area Agreement (FTA),
Thailand has been granted the privileges to trade with many countries such as Australia, China, India, and the United State of
America, etc., making Thailand gain the higher competitive advantage, leading to an increased amount of the products to be
manufactured consequently. Another competitive advantage is that the Investment Promotion Certificate to expand the company’s
production by the end of year 2007, moreover, the penetration into new markets have also increased the products in both quantity

and variety of product types.

Sources : The Office of Industrial Economics, Ministry of Industry
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Risk Factors

The company has engaged in manufacturing coils for domestic distribution and exportation. In addition to general risk factors

in relation to operation, the following are potential risk factors to be considered,;

1. Business Operation Factor
1.1 Risk in major customer dependence
Over the past three years, the company has no more than 30% sale proportion of the consolidated sale income
to any customer. Sale proportion to the top five customers during 2005-2007 could be summarized as follow;

Sale proportion to the top five customers during 2005-2007

2005 2006 2007
Sale proportion to the top five customers 65.48 72.98 60.24

Note: These figures are inclusive of the oversea distributors
These major customers have established with the company the longstanding goodwill relationship while the
company has jointly been engaging in the ongoing product development. The quality of the products has been approved
by the renowned institutions in accordance with standard requirement that satisfied the customer need speedily and
effectively. This ensures the company of retaining the existing customer base and future expansion of prospective

customer base.

1.2 Risk in raw material price
Because raw material price varies with the market mechanism, the company has to catch up closely by
pursuing the update information from reliable sources of institutes and suppliers. To do so, the company provides the
management to reduce the price risk by detaining and controlling the purchased quantity of raw materials used in
manufacturing for certain customers in which the inventory stock remains adequate for production process at the right
time. At the same time, the company provides the measures to cope with the price fluctuation by ordering raw

materials in accordance with a number of customer’s purchase orders appropriately.

1.3 Risks in major and minor supplier dependence
In 2007, the company had purchased the copper pipe from one of major suppliers; the purchase order
accounted for 43.45 percent of overall purchase order for copper, and ordered the aluminium from three of major
suppliers, accounting for 48.99 percent ,21.25 percent and 8.48 percent of overall purchase order for aluminium.
Because of market uncertainty and relatively high price variation in the recent years, this results in the scarcity of
copper and aluminium in the market. Therefore, to ensure of the adequateness in raw materials and reduced risk of
scarcity, the company controls and maintains the inventory stock at adequate volume supporting the continuous

production and ordered raw materials from fewer suppliers to leverage the bargaining and large volume discount.

2. Financial Risk
Regarding to risk in loss of currency exchange rate, the company has analyzed the opportunity of exposure and its
effect resulted from the previous year situation; it’s observed that exchange rate in Bath currency has relatively fluctuated.
While the company has earned the income from coil exportation in foreign currency, US dollar and Aus dollar, the company

has ordered and imported some raw materials by making payment in U.S dollar. It’s important for the executives to pursue
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the situation and deal with exchange rate management to support the sound decision-making. The company typically has
hedges of the foreign exchange exposure by means of the natural hedge and consideration of forward contract, depending

upon the circumstance as deemed appropriated.

3. External Risk Factors

The significant external risk factors which are beyond the company’s control include;

I Interest rate risk: As partial financial sources come from loan, the financial cost depends upon loan interest which
is considered external risk factor beyond the company’s control. The higher the interest rate, meaning the higher
effect of financial cost would result. However, the company resorts the respective preventive measures by
maintaining the fund and loan debt structure ratio at reasonable level to allow that the return on investment is

higher than financial cost of the company.

I Increased price risk of fuel and energy in global markets

The globally increased price of oil fuel and energy causes the risk of the higher price of raw materials.

As the price of merchandises sold in the market might not be raised high with the increased price of raw
materials, this results in lesser gross profit. In this case, the opportunity of the occurrence is likely to be high, so
the company provides the policy to reduce the risk by assigning the powerful executives with knowledge and ability
and experience to take accountability for supervising and following-up. The purchase strategy and operation have
been aligned appropriately with the constantly changing situation and quantity and time. Moreover, the increased
cost of energy power leads to higher administrative cost of the company. The energy-saving measures have been

adopted and adaptation of related accessories has been carried out to reduce the cost on energy consumption.
As such, risk factors have been reviewed while the consequential effect and improvement measures have been

contemplated to make sure that operation has been executed consistently with the changing situation at each period of the time for

the long-term competitive advantages.
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Future Project

In 2008, the air-conditioning domestic markets are likely to expand continually as resulted from the effect of global warming
climate in which air-conditioners are needed by customers in various markets. The C.I. Group Public Limited Company, a leading
manufacturer of coil part in Thailand establishes a new product development plan in production process, and ERP application used
in production control system. This can be an effective way to add value to products that meet the immediate demand of customers
purposefully. To accomplish this, the company has paid attention to exportation that covers Europe countries and the United State
of America. It is anticipated that domestic to export sales ratio will adjust from 70 : 30 in 2007s to 50:50 in 2008. The maximum
production capacity will rise from 1,200 million square inch in 2007 to 2,000 and 3,000 million square inch in 2008 and 2009

respectively. It is also expected that planned sales will grow up to 5,000 million Baht in the next three years.
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Corporate Governance

The Board of the C.I. Group Public Company Limited has emphasized the good governance practices to ensure the constant
growth and development of the business. The company has embraced and complied with the Code of Best Practices in accordance
with the Stock Exchange of Thailand. The company also encourages all members of the Board to be trained the Director
Accreditation Program (DAP) held by the Thai Institute of Directors (I0D).

Under the Principle of the Good Corporate Governance, the company has provided the internal auditor office which is

responsible for supervising the business in just and fair manner with all parties.

Corporate Governance Policy
The Board of Directors has realized the significance of the Principle of Good Corporate Governance by embracing the
following;
1. Operate business in accordance with applicable law, regulation, rule and requirement set out by Stock Exchange Committee
(SEC), requirement of the Stock Exchange of Thailand, and comply with the resolution of the shareholder meeting.
2. Maintain the interest of the company and regard for the privilege and equitability among the shareholders and stakeholders
and all parties on fair and equitable basis.
3. Promote the company performance in transparent and verifiable manner by all related parties.
4. Prevent the company from entering into the conflict of interest which may occur among the companies, establish
confidences with the shareholder under the transparent and verifiable tradeoff approach.
The Board of Directors consist at least no less than three independent committees.
Provide the evaluation and risk control appropriately.

Disclosure the financial report and complete information that has influenced the decision-making reliably and justly.

© N o o

The Board of Directors should hold a meeting at least on quarterly basis regularly and special meeting is allowed to be held
when necessary. The meeting agenda should be designed in advance pursuant to the company’s regulation so that the

Board members have enough time to examine the information prior to the meeting.

The company, in good faith, assumes that Good Corporate Governance is useful administrative guideline and honestly values
its principles and compliance in term of corporate responsibility equitably to those related parties. For examples, the company clearly
defines the competency and responsibility for the Board of Directors, Audit Committee, and Executive Committee and Managing

Director.

Shareholder’s Right
All company shareholders shall be treated on equitable and non-discriminative basis as follows;
1. Disseminate information to shareholders, investor, stakeholders, and concerned person through channel of the Stock
Exchange of Thailand and company website.
2. At shareholder meeting, the shareholders shall be provided with necessary information to contemplate on individual agenda
so that they can make their decision and vote in the meeting independently, and be opened for questioning at the meeting
and are entitled to assign others attending the meeting in case of absence or necessity.

3. The shareholders shall not commit any conducts in the way that interfere other shareholder’s right.

Stakeholder’s Right
The company has valued the significance of privilege of all stakeholders in respect of maintaining the company’s interest
and the benefit, right and equitability of shareholders and stakeholders which include company’s shareholder, employee, trade

partners, customers, competitor, social and environmental setting as follow;
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Employee

All company employees are regarded as valuable human resource and a vital mechanism moving the company toward
progression. The company has encouraged all the employees to improve their capacity corresponding to their aptitude and current
functional responsibility and give commitment contributing the quality of work life equitably and justly with reasonable and just

compensation.

Trade Partner
The company shall comply with term and condition on trading strictly to build the trade alliance that benefits each other

mutually.

Creditor
The company behaves as reliable debtor regarding the mutual interest and follow the term and condition provided by the

creditor strictly.

Customer
The company has truly committed to produce the standard products and service that meets the satisfactory need of the

customers at reasonable price.

Competitor
The company has operated the business under the rule of fair competition and shall not commit any conduct violating other

trade partners’ right.

Community and Society
The company has been engaged in taking social corporate responsibility for environmental and natural resources in

community and society.

Shareholder Meeting

In FY 2007, the company held an annual shareholder meeting on April 24, 2007 time 01:30p.m. at Banburi Hall, the 14"
floor, Siam Bevery, Ratchada St., Hauykwang, Bangkok. The meeting agenda detailed the place, date and time of the meeting and
topics presented in the meeting, enclosed the power of attorney, annual report, and supplementary information to be considered,
and mailed seven day in advance, and sequential 3-day publicized in the newspaper prior to the meeting begins to the shareholders
whose name are in the shareholder list on date of closing the register book.

On the date of the meeting, the shareholders shall have about one hour and thirty minutes to enroll attendance from
12:00a.m before the meeting begins.

On Board meeting, the company’s auditors and executives meet unanimously. Regarding to vote which shareholder’s
resolution is required, voting process shall be conducted using vote card. Before the meeting begins, the chairman of the meeting
informs the shareholders and the proxy of a number of the attendants, and explains how to vote with vote card. The majority shall
be constituted a meeting resolution. The meeting procedure shall be pursued orderly as specified in the predetermined letter of
meeting appointment. In addition, individual shareholder can express his/her opinion and interrogate independently at the meeting. At
the end of the meeting, the detailed meeting resolution shall be disclosed and posted on the company website, http://

www.coilinter.com.

76  Annual Report 2007 C.l. Group Public Company Limited



Corporate Governance

Leadership and Vision

The Board of Directors consists of a group of competent responsible persons who play important role in supervising,
auditing, and evaluating the company performance, honestly responsible for pursuing the company in compliance with applicable
law, regulations and shareholder meeting resolution, overseeing the administrative affair of management in pursuit to policy, goal,
and designated budgets effectively and efficiently.

At the Board meeting, the executives shall report the Directors the project progress on quarterly basis. In case of new
proposal to be presented in the meeting, it shall be asked for opinion and approval which the Board shall take into consideration

carefully based on the maximum interest of the shareholders.

Conflicts of Interest
To avoid the interest conflict which may occur among the Board of Directors, executive, and employees, the company
declares the following guidelines;

1. The Directors shall neither operate nor engage in nor partake as shareholder or partnership with any juristic person operating
the similar business or competing with the company, unless informed in the shareholder meeting prior to appointment
resolution.

2. Executive and employees shall neither use internal information for their own exploitation in buying and selling the
company’s stock, nor disclose the third party or any concerned persons the internal information that jeopardizes the
shareholders.

3. Executives and employees shall not utilize their position or acquired information to operate activity or any business relevant
to company business to compete.

4. In case that the company and its affiliates have some related transactions or acquired the crucial corporate assets sold, the
Board and the Management shall conduct a meeting for such respective matter carefully, honestly and reasonably for the
sake of the optimum interest of the company and overall shareholders. The Directors or executives who are stakeholders
concerning such a case are required to leave the Board meeting and disclose the information through channels so that the

stakeholders can be advised thoroughly and equitably.

Business Ethics

The company policy has exercised the disclosure of the performance of the Board and employees to customers, trade
partners, society and related persons explicitly, and embraced the Best Practices honestly, justly and equitably. The company
pursues the performance and concerned matters in accordance with the policy and ethics regularly, including to disciplinary

punishment.

Balance of Power for Authority of Non-executive Directors
The company currently has overall 8 directors, composing of 5 executive committees and 3 independent committees who
have real independence out of the Management and have neither business relationship nor any other kinds of relationship with the

company. This is to ensure of the autonomy and neutrality of the Board in respect of governance.
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Role between Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (CEO)
The power and responsibility between Chairman of Board and Chief Executive Officer (CEO) have been separated each
other clearly. While Chairman of Board primarily is responsible for supervising and overseeing the top executive, the CEO assumes

primary role as management leadership.

Directors and Executive Remuneration

The competitive and reasonable remuneration has been designed to the Directors and executives by the company at the
similar level to the industry compensation and no surplus compensation has been paid. The committee remuneration pay shall be
based on the meeting allowance depending on numbers of attendances, which shall be approved at the company’s shareholder
meeting. On the other hand, the executive remuneration shall be based on individual executive’s performance and company’s

performance. It’s believed that such incentive remuneration could be so motivated that powerful personnel can be retained.

Board Meeting

The company has policy that the Board of Directors shall convene the meeting at least every three months, and additional
meeting is permitted when necessary. At any meeting, the agenda shall be predetermined precisely and the letter of meeting
appointment shall be mailed seven days in advance so that the Directors shall have enough time to investigate the related matter
and topics reasonably prior to commencement of meeting. The detailed discussion at the meeting shall be recorded in writing, and
the Board-approved meeting report shall be retained and be verified by the Board and concerned persons.

Overall, the Board of Directors has held eleven meetings in the FY 2007.

Subcommittee

The audit committees compose of three independent committees who understand their role and responsibility concerning
tracking the company performance in pursuing to the Security Act and Stock Exchange or company business-related laws,
supervising the financial report to be submitted to the Board of Directors, and disclose the company information in case of related
transactions or case of interest conflict accurately and fully. The audit committees are able to perform their functions and express
their opinion freely, which the Office of Internal Auditing shall be responsible for auditing the company performance on quarterly

basis, and directly report the audit committees results of audit. In 2007, the audit committees have held overall five meeting.

Internal Audit and Control

As the company has valued the effective internal audit and control for both managerial and operation level, the obligation
and competency of operators and executives are prescribed definitely. The responsible duty and power between operator and
follower are separated each other. The control and evaluation are also separated to allow for the tradeoff on inspection
appropriately. In addition, internal financial control is conducted by providing the financial report submitted to the responsible chain
of command.

The company provides the Office of Internal Audit to ensure that the company’s core performance and crucial finance
activities have been executed in accordance with the practices effectively and to ensure that the Office of Internal Audit has its
autonomy in overseeing and tradeoff completely. The Board requires that the Office of Internal Audit reports the audit committee
the result of auditing directly and performance appraisal can be made by the audit committees accordingly.

The risk management has been emphasized by the company. The company has designated and evaluated the enterprise risk

and other potential risks that can affect the company’s performance.
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Committee Report

Audit Committee have traced the company’s financial report presented by the Account and Finance on quarterly basis, with
enclosed letter of meeting appointment mailed seven days in advance so that the audit committee shall have enough time to
investigate and trace the financial statement, along with the company’s auditor to make a resolution for approval of the financial
statement before submitting the Board of Directors every three months. The members of the Board shall be responsible for the
consolidated financials statement of the company and its affiliates as shown in the annual report. Such a financial statement has
been established in accordance with the accounting standard certified by the Accounting Office approved by Stock Exchange
Committee (SEC), and important information about the financial statement has been disclosed based on the factual proof fully and

timely to the stakeholders in thorough and equitable manner.

Investor Relations

As there is still no information service agency in related and non-related financial statement that has affected the investor’s
decision-making process, the company has assigned the Central Management to disclose the company’s information and
responsible for getting contact with the analysts and related investors. The company has focused the accuracy and transparency of
the information disclosure for the benefit of the investors through the company website http://www.coilinter.com. In 2007, the
company participated the “Opportunity Day” held by the Stock Exchange of Thailand. The objective of the exhibition was to expose
the opportunity for the investors to enquire the information about the company thoroughly and equitably. If any questions relevant
to disclosure or further information, they are recommended to contact the Central Management at call 02-976-5290 or via email:

secretary@coilinter.com

Surveillance of Internal Information Use

To protect the exploitation and misappropriation of undisclosed internal information, the company requires that the members
of the Board, executives and their spouse or immature dependants shall not make use of the company’s internal information
undisclosed to the public for their own purpose of buying, selling, transferring, or being assigned of the corporate assets prior to
date of public disclosure or one month before public disclosure of the financial statement. This is to permit the transparent

administration and the benefit of all concerned parties.

Regarding to buying, selling, transferring, or being assigned of the company’s securities, the Directors and executives shall
report the change in the possession of assets to the Stock Exchange Committee (SEC), and Stock Exchange of Thailand, pursuant
to the requirements provided by the Stock Exchange Committee (SEC). Also, a copy of such a report shall be filed to the company

as a documentary proof.

Personnel
Fringe Benefit and Remuneration
The company provides all the employees with competitive reasonable remuneration based on qualification, work
experience, and ability of the individual employees and rely on pay criterion which currently has implemented in the labor market. In
consideration of annual salary increase, the employees’ performance and appraised performance results shall be taken into
consideration primarily. Salary adjustment shall be done on yearly basis and fringe benefits and welfare provided shall vary

depending upon the company’s performance, necessity and other factors as deemed appropriated.
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Personnel Development

The company has regarded the employee as valuable human resources potentially crucial to the company’s business
growth. The company focuses developing the learning skills and abilities of the internal personnel staffs to improve their
performance with the following personnel development policy.

1 Provide the employees with both internal and external training so that they can improve knowledge and constructive
thinking that can be usefully applied to their work for the optimal benefit on improvement and development of the
organization.

2. Those employees relevant to the investor relation and contact person shall be encouraged to attend the seminar and join
with the Stock Exchange of Thailand for acquiring the newly messages or regulations modified or added by the Stock
Exchange of Thailand (SET), and emphasize the change in regulation established by the Stock Exchange Committee (SEC) so

that the company shall be directed in the way corresponding to the regulation and the Best Practice Principle

Employee Safety and Welfare Policy

The employee’s welfare and safety on workplace has been emphasized by the company. Not only having provided the
employees with general health insurance and special welfare for those employees who work under the risk situation or risky area,
the company also requires that employees who are assigned to perform duty in high risky area and supervisors at every level in the
organization shall be trained on the workplace safety in accordance with the workplace safety law, Ministry of Labor and Social
Welfare. This is to enhance the employees and supervisors of different work units to realize and manage their subordinators safely
to avoid the accidence or illness caused by working.

Currently, the company has set up the Workplace Environment and Bio-Hygiene Safety Commission, which included
professional safety officials, management safety officials, and supervisor safety officials. All commission shall be trained on the work
safety according to the curriculum provided by the Ministry of Labor and Social Welfare, and responsible for coordinating, promoting,
and enhancing the work safety area to employees. In addition, Enterprise Place Welfare Commission has been established aiming to
take care of the employees, coordinate the understanding between the company and employees. Also, the company has partaken
as member of the “White Plant” project to express the intention of the corporate social responsibility to cope with the proliferation
of illicit drug problems which are currently spreading over the business places according to policy promoted by the Ministry of Labor

and Social Welfare.

Internal Control
The audit committee is responsible for tracing the corporate performance correctly in accordance with the company policy
and regulations, boosting and improving the reporting system of the finance and accounting to meet the internationally accepted

accounting standard. In doing so, the company employs the Nititham Auditing Office as the company’s auditor.

The audit committee performs functions of auditing and expressing the opinion freely under the supervision of the Office of
Internal Audit in accordance with the auditing procedures set out by the Board of Directors, disclosing the information in transparent
and adequate manner in accordance with the Best Practice to enhance the effectiveness and efficiency in the operation based on
the international accounting audit principles and directly reporting the audit committee, and deliberating with the auditor on quarterly

basis.
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Related Transaction and Acquisition/Sales of Company’s Assets
In case that the company and its affiliates have some transaction relevant to or acquiring or sales the company assets that
may lead to any kind of interest conflict, the company has to conduct the measures to bring forth the transparency and equitability
for the benefit of the shareholders, by embracing the following guidelines;
1. The transaction is regarded for the company interest as the transaction with the outsiders.
2. The transaction is passed on comments through entering the transaction under sound consideration of the audit committee
in term of reasonability and price appropriation.

3. The transaction is consented by the Board of Directors transparently in conjunction with the stockholder’s decision-making.

>

Information is disseminated to those concerned persons equitably.

Surveillance of Subsidiaries and Joint Venture
In case the company has made investment with the affiliates or joint ventures, the company shall control its operation by

transiting the committee as representatives at practical proportion of shares hold.

Measures or Approval Procedures for Related-transaction

In the inter-transaction procedures, it’s necessary to be reasonable to allow the optimum interest of the company. For
current inter-transaction incurred that has been deliberated by the audit committee, it must be general operation and fair
compensation is paid by the company.

That contingent inter-transaction should be considered based on reasonability and necessity. Pay and wages should be made
in accordance with the fair price in the market and should be approved by the audit committee.

Having such the preceding event occurred, the audit committee shall determine based on the necessity and reasonability of

the transaction, and inform their opinion at the Board meeting

Future Related-Transaction Policy

For any contingent inter-transaction, the Directors shall not approve any transaction that he/she or related party may invoke
any kinds of the interest conflict against the company interest and such transaction should be disclosed in the presence of the audit
committee to determine whether or not it is classified as general business with fair price, and further submit the Directors for
approval.

However, the company has embraced the practices in accordance with the applicable law relevant to the security and the
stock exchange, regulation, proclamation, order or the rule of the Stock Exchange of Thailand, including disclosure procedures for

the related transaction, acquisition or distribution of the crucial assets of the company or the affiliates.
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Related-transactions
Detailed Related-transactions
As during 2006s - 2007s, the company and its subsidiaries transactions with party that may cause the interest conflict,

the company has to undertake the following transactions with necessity and reasonability;

Individual / Juristic Person

who may cause the interest

Relationship

Description

Related- Necessity and

transactionsAmount reasonability of

conflicts (mllion Baht) transactions
2006 2007
1. Lamda Group / manufacturer Mr.Aree Poomsanoh and his wife, Merchandising, 6.53 397 According to natural
of air-conditioner and chiller 91% ex-shareholder of the Lamda Account 1.43 0.69 operation by
Group. Currently Aree and his wife Receivable company reasonably
have already floated overall stocks to
unrelated persons.
2. AW Co.,Ltd. / manufacturer C.l. Group PLC has 35% shares of Merchandising, 0.14 27.46 According to natural
and distributor of air-conditioning overall shares in the AW Co.,Ltd. Account 0.42 11.90  operation by
components Mr. Wongsawat Wongsawang and Receivable company reasonably
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Report of the Independent Certified Public Company Accountants

Report of the Independent Certified Public Company
Accountants

To The Shareholders and Board of Directors of

C.1.Group Public Company Limited

| have audited the balance sheet as at December 31, 2007, the related consolidated statements of income, the related
consolidated changes in shareholders’ equity and consolidated cash flows for the year then ended (included equity in subsidiary until
the disposal date on December 26, 2007) of C.I.Group Public Company Limited and its subsidiary and the statements of income,
changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the year then ended December 31, 2007 of C.I.Group Public Company Limited.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management as to their correctness and completeness of the
presentation. My responsibility is to issue a report on these financial statements based on my audit. The financial statements of
such company for the year ended December 31, 2006, presented herewith for the comparative purpose only, (before restatement)
were audited by another independent auditor whose report dated February 26, 2007 expressed and unqualified opinion on those
statements.

| conducted my audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that | plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. | believe that my audits provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial
position of C.I.Group Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries, as at December 31, 2007, the consolidated results of their
operations, changes in their shareholders’ equity and their cash flows for the year then ended (included equity in subsidiary until the
disposal date on December 26, 2007) and the financial position of C.I.Group Public Company Limited as at December 31, 2007, the
results of its operations, the changes in its shareholders’ equity and its cash flow for the year then ended in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles.

Without qualifying opinion, | draw attention to note 33 to the financial statements. The Company has provided a
consolidated statements of income, the related consolidated changes in shareholders’ equity and consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended December 31, 2006 to be presented for comparative purposes of the financial statement of a subsidiary company,
which are included in the consolidate financial statement for the year ended December 31, 2006, have been audited by another

auditor.

(Mr. Pojana Asavasontichai)
Certified Public Accountant

Registration No. 4891

Dharmniti Auditing Company Limited
Bangkok, Thailand
February 25, 2008
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Report of the Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial Statements

Report of the Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for
Financial Statements

The Board of Directors is responsible for the Company’s financial statements, the consolidated financial statement of the
Company and its affiliated companies, and the financial information stated in the Company’s Annual Report. These financial
statements were prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting standards in Thailand, which are based on appropriated
accounting policies applied and practiced on a regular basis. The financial statements were carefully prepared based on the most
accurate and up-to-date information available. All relevant information related to the policies and practices used to prepare these
financial statements are sufficiently disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements in order to maintain the Company’s high
standards of transparency for the benefit of shareholders and investors.

The Board of Directors has initiated the adoption and maintenance of an effective system of risk management and internal
control which provides reasonable assurance that the Company’s accounting records are accurate, complete, and sufficient to
protect the assets of the Company. This system is also designed to prevent serious misconduct or other irregularities in the
operation of the Company.

The Audit Committee was appointed by the Board and comprises independent directors to oversee the quality of the
Company’s financial reports and internal control procedures. The Audit Committee’s view regarding such matters is disclosed in this
Annual Report under the Audit Committee’s Report.

In the Board of Directors’ opinion, the Company’s internal control system is satisfactory and can assure the reliability of
both the Company’s financial statements and the consolidated financial statements of the Company and its affiliated companies as

of 31 December 2007.

o

Dr. Vorapol Socatiyanurak Mr. Aree Poomsanoh

Chairman of the Board of Directors Chairman of the Executive Committee
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Management Discussion and Analysis

Overall, the 2007 performance results of the company and its subsidiaries earned 107.11 million Baht net profit, increased
by 91.74 million Baht or 596.66% compared to 15.38 million Baht in 2006. The performance results of the company and its
subsidiaries in 2007 could be summarized as follows;

1. Revenues - On ended 31 December 2007, the revenues of the company and its subsidiaries raised by 230.42 million Baht
or 21.35% from 1,079.05 million Baht gross profit of in 2006 to 1,309.47 million Baht in 2007, as resulted from increasing
purchase orders of the major customers and also new customers.

2. Cost of Goods Sold - The sales cost of the company and its subsidiaries raised from 949.46 million Baht in 2006 to
1,053.80 million Baht, or increased by 10.99%. The cost of goods sold to income ratio at 83.28% in 2007 compared to
90.27% in 2006. Overall, sale cost ratio of the company and its subsidiaries decreased by 6.99% compared to that of 2006
as resulted from improved management.

3. Sale and administrative expense - It increased by 4 million Baht to 92.92 million Baht in 2007 from 88.92 million Baht
in 2006. Sale revenue proportion decreased by 1.11% in 2006 from 8.45% to 7.34% in 2007.

On ended 31st December 2007, company’s overall assets increased from 827.11 million Baht in 2006 to 1,190.11
million Baht in 2007 raised up by 363 million Baht or accounted for 43.89% as resulted from investment on land, building,
and equipments used to expand production, including increase in current assets on account receivables as resulted from
growing sales.

Regarding to liabilities, the company has total debts of 551.50 million Baht in 2006 and 459.70 million Baht in 2007,
reduced by 91.80 million Baht in 2007 or 16.65%, as resulted from repayment of short-term loans to the financial institutes.

On cash flow statement, on ended 31st December 2007, the company and its subsidiaries have 113.79 million Baht cash
flow derived from operation. Majority of cash flow have used as current capital for account payables, account receivables, and
increased inventory. Regarding to investment activities, the company and its subsidiaries purchased the building, land, machines and
equipments to expand the company’s production, resulting that cash flow from investment was 267.26 million Baht. For cash flow
from financing activities, the company earned cash from the increase of the registered capital of 414.09 million Baht, while paying
the bank overdraft and short-term loan from financial institutes amounted 171.28 million Baht, and dividend sum of 68.52 million
Baht, affecting the company and its subsidiaries gain a funding cash sum of 189.05 million Baht. As a result, at the end of year

2007, the company and its subsidiaries had cash and cash equivalent increased by 35.58 Million Baht.
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BALANCE SHEETS

C.I.GROUP PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

(Baht)

As at December As at December

ASSETS Note 31, 2007 31, 2006
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 3.3,6 55,972,024 19,391,831
Short - term investments 3.4,7 118,794,613 =
Trade account receivable - net 3.5,8 318,975,240 246,516,163
Inventories - net 3.6,9 217,316,728 193,029,468
Other current assets 10 6,114,242 4,653,060
Total current assets 717,172,847 463,590,522
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Investment in subsidiary company 11 = 4,040,134
Property, plant and equipment - net 3.7,12 413,351,143 328,776,080
Land not used in operations - at cost 3.8,13 26,000,000 26,000,000
Intangible assets - net 3.9, 14 610,269 1,553,316
Restricted fixed deposit 16 1,465,000 1,465,000
Deposit from land 8,802,078 -
Deposit from machinery 22,679,911 1,669,146
Other non-current assets 30,000 19,000
Total non-current assets 472,938,401 363,522,676
TOTAL ASSETS 1,190,111,248 827,113,198

Notes to the financial statements form an intergral part of these statements.
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BALANCE SHEETS (conr)

C.I.GROUP PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Bank overdrafts and short-term loans from financial

institutions
Trade accounts payable to other parties
Current portion of long-term loans
Current portion of hire-purchase liability
Income tax payable
Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long-term loans from financial institutions
Hire-purchase liability

Total non-current liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

Notes to the financial statements form an intergral part of these statements.

C.l. Group Public Company Limited

Note

16
3.12
16

16, 17

18

16

17

Financial Statement and Notes

As at December

(Baht)

As at December

31, 2007 31, 2006
50,000,180 221,273,985
158,505,691 124,689,543
59,513,889 58,127,045
50,720 608,642
10,118,102 1,948,212
12,137,231 10,245,905
290,325,813 416,893,332
169,375,980 134,553,520
- 50,720
169,375,980 134,604,240
459,701,793 551,497,572
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BALANCE SHEETS (conr)

C.I.GROUP PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

(Baht)

As at December As at December
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY Note 31, 2007 31, 2006

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Share capital 20
Authorised share capital
247,500,000 ordinary shares of Baht 1.00 each 247,500,000
350,000,000 ordinary shares of Baht 1.00 each 350,000,000

Issued and paid-up share capital

165,000,000 ordinary shares of Baht 1.00 each 165,000,000
250,650,000 ordinary shares of Baht 1.00 each 250,650,000
Share premium 407,194,375 78,750,000

Retained earnings

Appropriated for legal reserve 21 12,707,000 8,255,000
Unappropriated 59,858,080 23,610,626
Total shareholders’ equity 730,409,455 275,615,626

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 1,190,111,248 827,113,198

Notes to the financial statements form an intergral part of these statements.
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STATEMENTS OF INCOME

C.I.GROUP PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007 AND 2006

Note
REVENUES
Revenue from sales and rendering
of services 22

Other income
Gain from sales of investment of subsidiary
Total revenues
EXPENSES
Cost of sales and rendering of services
Selling and administrative expenses
Director’s remuneration
Total expenses

Profit before interest and income tax expenses

Interest expense 23
Income tax expense 3.17, 24
Profit after income tax expense

Net (profit) loss of minority interest

NET PROFIT

Earnings per share 28

Notes to the financial statements form an intergral part of these statements.

C.l. Group Public Company Limited

Financial Statement and Notes

Consolidated
Statements of Income

(Baht)

The Company’s
Statements of Income Only

2007 2006 2007 2006
(included equity (Restated)
in subsidiary (included
until the equity in subsidiary

disposal date on
December 26,
2007)

1,265,303,066
38,596,742
5,570,184

from October
25, 2006, as at
acquisitiondate)

1,051,799,139
27,248,698

1,201,252,406
42,093,801
4,437,643

1,012,244,468
27,231,314

1,309,469,992

1,079,047,837

1,247,783,850

1,039,475,782

1,0583,803,200
90,631,127

2,290,000

949,459,502
86,552,649

2,370,000

1,015,670,087
75,320,277

2,290,000

919,587,528
80,323,574

2,370,000

1,146,724,327

1,038,382,151

1,093,280,364

1,002,281,102

162,745,665 40,665,686 154,503,486 37,194,680
20,491,782 15,462,137 20,439,544 15,415,834
30,002,760 7,425,291 26,734,488 6,620,107

112,251,123 17,778,258 107,329,454 15,158,739
(5,138,356) (2,402,832) = =

107,112,767 15,375,426 107,329,454 15,168,739

0.61 0.09 0.61 0.09
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Financial Statement and Notes

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS” EQUITY

C.1.GROUP PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007 AND 2006

(Baht)

Consolidated (included equity in subsidiary until the disposal date on December 26, 2007)

Share capital Premium Retained earnings
|ssuc_e: LLE on sl_lta:e Appropriated Unappropriated  Minority
Note AT capfal - egal reserve interest equity  Total
attributable
to minority
Beginning balance as at
January 1, 2006 165,000,000 78,750,000 7,109,000 27,747,887 - 278,606,887
Net income (loss) for the period - - - 15,375,426 - 15,375,426
Less Legal reserve - - 1,146,000 (1,146,000) - -
Dividend 27 - - - (18,150,000) - (18,150,000)
Minority interest increase - - - - 5,602,692 5,602,692
Gain (loss) on minority interest
equity attributable to minority = = = = 2,402,832 2,402,832

Ending balance, as at December 31, 2006 165,000,000 78,750,000 8,255,000 23,827,313 7,905,524 283,737,837

Beginning balance as at January 1, 2007 165,000,000 78,750,000 8,255,000 23,827,313 7,905,524 283,737,837

Net income (loss) for the period - - - 107,112,767 - 107,112,767
Increase in share capital 85,650,000 328,444,375 - - - 414,094,375
Gain (loss) on minority interest equity
attributable to minority - - - - 5,138,356 5,138,356
Less Legal reserve - - 4,452,000 (4,452,000) - -
Dividend 27 - - - (66,630,000) (1,890,000) (68,520,000)

Ending balance, as at December 31, 2007 250,650,000 407,194,375 12,707,000 59,858,080 11,153,880 741,563,335

Notes to the financial statements form an intergral part of these statements.
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C.1.GROUP PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007 AND 2006

Note
Beginning balance as at January 1, 2006
Net income (loss) for the period
Less Legal reserve
Dividend 27

Ending balance, as at December 31, 2006

Beginning balance as at January 1, 2007
Net income (loss) for the period
Increase in share capital
Less Legal reserve
Dividend 27

Ending balance, as at December 31, 2007

Financial Statement and Notes

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (CONT.)

(Baht)
The Company’s Only
Share capital  Premium Retained earnings
issued and on share capital Appropriated  Unappropriated Total
paid-up legal reserve
165,000,000 78,750,000 7,109,000 27,747,887 278,606,887
- - - 15,158,739 15,158,739
- - 1,146,000 (1,146,000) -
- - - (18,150,000) (18,150,000)
165,000,000 78,750,000 8,255,000 23,610,626 275,615,626
165,000,000 78,750,000 8,255,000 23,610,626 275,615,626
- - - 107,329,454 107,329,454
85,650,000 328,444,375 - - 414,094,375
- - 4,452,000 (4,452,000) -
- - - (66,630,000) (66,630,000)
250,650,000 407,194,375 12,707,000 59,858,080 730,409,455

Notes to the financial statements form an intergral part of these statements.
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Financial Statement and Notes

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

C.1.GROUP PUBLIC COVMPANY LIMITED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007 AND 2006

(Baht)
Consolidated The Company’s
Statements of Income Statements of Income Only
2007 2006 2007 2006
(included equity (Restated) (included
in subsidiary until equity in subsidiary
the disposal date from October 25,
on December 2006, as at
26, 2007) acquisitiondate)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net profit 107,112,767 15,375,426 107,329,454 15,158,739
Reconciliations of net profit (loss) to net cash provided by
(used in) operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 41,883,302 34,257,071 41,248,608 33,677,730
Interest expense 20,491,782 15,462,138 20,439,544 15,415,834
Allowance for doubtful accounts (reversal) (1,332,088) 1,517,899  (1,332,088) 1,517,899
Provisions for diminution of inventory value - 1,525,827 - 1,525,827
Unrealized loss (gain) on exchange rate 211,456 161,239 196,086 127,148
(Gain) loss from sales of fixed assets (792,906) - (792,906) -
Loss from asset write - off 55,787 1,677,067 55,787 1,671,016
Income tax expenses 30,002,760 7,425,291 26,734,488 6,620,107
Loss (gain) on impairment of investment of subsidiary - - (622,223) 7,759,866
Sharing in (losses) profits from investment of subsidiary 5,138,356 2,402,832 - -
Loss (gain) from sales of investment of subsidiary (5,570,184) - (4,437,643) -
Dividend income (3,510,000) - (3,510,000) -
Net income from operations before changes of
operating assets and liabilities 193,691,032 79,804,790 185,309,107 83,474,166

(Increase) decrease in operating assets

Accounts receivable and retention (83,865,810) (22,058,181) (71,333,211) (21,856,960)
Inventories (29,180,058) (57,867,042) (24,287,260) (54,366,160)
Other current assets 5,020,172 9,313,781 (1,461,182) 16,988,960
Other assets (95,112) (1,740,000) (11,000)  (1,669,146)
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities
Accounts payable and note payable 40,961,053 (24,473,379) 33,826,284 (26,010,830)
Other current liabilities 4,575,413 1,483,623 217,780 (892,089)
Income taxes paid (17,319,806) (10,412,807) (16,546,046) (10,012,633)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 113,786,884 (25,949,215) 105,714,472 (14,344,692)

Notes to the financial statements form an intergral part of these statements.
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Financial Statement and Notes

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (con,)

C.1.GROUP PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007 AND 2006

(Baht)

Consolidated
Statements of Income

The Company’s
Statements of Income Only

2007 2006 2007 2006
(included equity (Restated) (included
in subsidiary until equity in subsidiary
the disposal date from October 25,
on December 2006, as at
26, 2007) acquisitiondate)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Increase shoprt term investment (118,794,613) - (118,794,613) -
Increase in investment - - (11,800,000)
Cash received (paid) from sales of investment
in subsidiary 2,179,666 - 9,100,000 -
Increase in fixed assets (125,166,442) (85,648,401) (124,965,935) (81,839,415)
Deposit from land (8,802,078) - (8,802,078) -
Deposit from machinery (21,010,765) (1,669,146) (21,010,765) -
Dividend income 3,510,000 - 3,510,000 -
Sales of equipment 822,430 1,519,301 822,430 791,301

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Interest paid

Increase (decrease) in bank overdrafts and

(267,261,802)

(85,798,246)

(260,140,961)

(92,848,114)

(20,836,788)

(15,184,145)

(20,784,550)

(15,137,841)

short-term loans (171,283,410) 139,399,675 (171,273,805) 139,301,136
Proceeds from long-terms loans from financial
institutions 98,945,804 39,737,235 98,945,804 39,737,235

Repayment of long-term loans from financial

institutions (62,736,500) (36,363,726)  (62,736,500) (36,363,726)
Payments of hire-purchase liability (608,642) (608,642) (608,642) (608,642)
Cash received (paid) from capital increased 414,094,375 - 414,094,375 -
Dividend (68,520,000) (18,150,000)  (66,630,000) (18,150,000)
Increase in minority interest’s capital subsidiary - 5,502,692 - -

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 189,054,839 114,333,089 191,006,682 108,778,162
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents, net 35,579,921 2,585,628 36,580,193 1,585,356
Cash and cash equivalents, at beginning of period 20,392,103 17,806,475 19,391,831 17,806,475
Cash and cash equivalents, at ending of period 55,972,024 20,392,103 55,972,024 19,391,831

Notes to the financial statements form an intergral part of these statements.
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Financial Statement and Notes

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (coNr)

C.1.GROUP PUBLIC COVMIPANY LIMITED

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007 AND 2006

Supplemental disclosure of cash flows information :

1. Cash and cash equivalent consisted of:
Cash on hand
Cash in banks-saving accounts
Cash in banks-current account
Total
2. Cash paid during the period for :
Interest expenses

Income tax

Consolidated
Statements of Income

(Baht)

The Company’s
Statements of Income Only

2007 2006 2007 2006
(included equity (Restated) (included
in subsidiary until equity in subsidiary
the disposal date from October 25,
on December 2006, as at
26, 2007) acquisitiondate)

56,265 65,349 56,265 65,349
41,381,085 19,907,606 41,381,085 18,907,334
14,534,674 419,148 14,534,674 419,148
55,972,024 20,392,103 55,972,024 19,391,831
20,836,788 15,184,145 20,784,550 15,137,841
17,319,806 10,412,807 16,546,046 10,012,633

Notes to the financial statements form an intergral part of these statements.
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Financial Statement and Notes

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

C.1.GROUP PUBLIC COVMIPANY LIMITED
DECEMBER 31, 2007

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

a) Address and legal status of the Company
The company has registered to be a limited public company under the Public Company Limited Act with
the Ministry of Commerce on March 1, 2004 and its head office and factory address at 1/1 Moo 7 Bangkoowad
Road, Tambon Bangkoowad, Amphor Muang Pathumthani, Thailand.

b) Nature the Company’s operations
The business activities of the Company and subsidiary are as follows:

The Company’s operations are related to manufacturing and selling of products and parts of air

conditioners.
c) Number of employees

As at December 31, 2007 and 2006 the Company has number of employees as follows:
The Company’s Only
2007 2006

Number of employees (Persons) 559 468

d) Supplemental disclosures of expense information

Supplemental disclosures of expense information for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 are

as follows:
(In Thousand Baht)
Consolidated The Company’s Only
2007 2006 2007 2006
Depreciation 40,941 33,361 40,306 32,782
Employee benefit costs 128,114 97,234 121,325 93,400
Gain (loss) on exchange rate (1,241) (6,804) (1,036) (6,416)

2. PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company’s consolidated statements of income, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows have been
prepared for the period from October 25, 2006 (as at the acquisition date) to December 31, 2006 which have been
revised for new presentation and for the period from January 1, 2007 to December 26, 2007 (date of disposal of
investment in subsidiary). Before the date of disposal, the company - C.I.Group Public Company Limited held a stake

of 35% of the authorized capital in the subsidiary - AVV Co.,Ltd.
Significant intercompany transactions between the Company and the subsidiary have been eliminated.

The Company and subsidiary operate their business as a manufacturer and seller of products and parts of air

conditioners.

As at December 31, 2006 AVV Company Limited has authorized and fully paid-up share capital amounting to
Baht 4 million.
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On 25 October 2006, the Company purchased 13,000 common shares of AVV Company Limited with a par
value of Baht 100 each from former shareholders (equivalent to 65% of total shares) at the price totaling Baht 11.7
million. At the extraordinary shareholders’ meeting of AVV Company Limited held on 30 November 2006, the
shareholders unanimously approved the increase of 20,000 new common shares with a par value of Baht 100 each at
the price totaling Baht 2 million. The Company additionally purchased 1,000 common shares at par value. This

resulted in a dilution of the Company’s shareholding in AVV Company Limited from 65% to 35%

At the Board of Directors’ meeting on December 25, 2007, the Board of Directors approved the Company sold
14,000 common shares of AVV Company Limited on December 26, 2007 at Baht 650 share in total of Baht 9.1 million.
As this represents the sale of total investment in AVV Company Limited the subsidiary per said is no longer under

control of the Company.

The financial statements of AVV Company Limited a subsidiary company, which are included in the
consolidated financial statements as at December 31, 2006, have been audited by another auditor, showing total
assets as at December 31, 2006 in the amount of Baht 5.99 million (0.71% of total assets) and net profit for the year
ended December 31, 2006 in the amount of Baht 0.22 million (1.41% of total net profit). However, the unaudited
financial statements of AVV Company Limited that are included in the consolidated financial statements as at
December 26, 2007, showing net profit (loss) for the year ended December 31, 2007 in the amount of Baht 7.91
million (7.38% of total net profit).

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
3.1 Basis for preparation of interim financial statements

3.1.1 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting standard enunciated under
the Accounting Profession Act B.E. 2547. The presentation of the financial statements has been made in
compliance with the stipulations of the Notification of the Department of Business Development dated 14
September 2001, issued under the Accounting Act B.E. 2543.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except where otherwise

disclosed in the accounting policies.
3.1.2 Adoption of new accounting standards during the period

In the year 2007, the Federation of Accounting Professions (FAP) has issued Notification No. 9/
2550 dated May 2, 2007, No.38/2550 dated September 21, 2007 and No. 62/2550 dated December 7,
2007 regarding Thai Accounting Standards (TAS), which were announced in the Royal Gazette. The
Notifications require mandating of the new Thai Accounting Standards (Revised 2007) which consist of

13 sets of standards instead of using the cancelled pervious versions.

TAS 25 Cash Flow Statements

TAS 33 Borrowing Costs

TAS 44 Consolidated Financial Statement and Separate Financial Statements
TAS 45 Investments in Associates

TAS 46 Interests in Joint Ventures

TAS 49 Construction Contracts

TAS 35 Financial Reporting and Presentation

TAS 39 Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates, and Corrections of Errors
TAS 41 Interim Financial Reporting

TAS 29 Leases (cancelled TAS 7 Hire-purchase)

TAS 31 Inventory
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TAS 43 Business Combinations

TAS 51 Intangible Assets
The Thai Accounting Standards effective for the current year.

Thai Accounting Standards No. 44 and 45 become effective for the financial statements for fiscal years
beginning on or after January 1, 2007. The Company has changed its accounting policy regarding to
investment in subsidiary and associated company in order to comply with the accounting standard No. 44 and
45 (revised 2007). (see Note No0.35)

Thai Accounting Standards No. 46 is not relevant to the Company’s business.

Thai Accounting Standards not effective for the current year but they will become effective for the financial
statements for fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 2008. The management has assessed the effect of
these revised accounting standards and classified them subject to its material impact level to the Company’s

financial statement as follows:

Revised Thai Accounting Standards that have insignificant impact to the Company’s financial statement
are the Thai Accounting Standards No. 25, 33, 35, 39, 41, 29, 43 and 51. The management believes that these

revised accounting standards will not have significant impact to the Company’s financial statement.

Revised Thai Accounting Standards that have no any impact to the Company’s financial statement are
the Thai Accounting Standards No. 49 and 31. The management believes that these revised accounting

standards will not precisely relevant to the Company’s business.
3.2 Revenues

The Company recognised revenues excludes value added taxes or other sales taxes and is arrived at

after deduction of trade discounts.
Sale of goods and services rendered

Revenue is recognized in the statement of income when the significant risks and rewards of ownership
have been transferred to the buyer. No revenue is recognized if there is continuing management involvement
with the goods or there are significant uncertainties regarding recovery of the consideration due, associated

costs or the probable return of goods. Service income is recognized based on service rendered.
Interest income
The Company recognised interest income in the statement of income on an accrual basis.
3.3 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances, call deposits and highly liquid short-term
investments. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand are a component of financing activities for the

purpose of the statement of cash flows.
3.4  Short term investment
Investment in promissory note from financial company is stated at cost.
3.5 Trade accounts and notes receivable

The Company shown trade accounts and notes receivable net of allowance for doubtful accounts which
is an estimate of those amounts which may prove to be uncollectible based on historical collection experience

and a review of the current status of existing receivable.
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3.6 Inventories
The Company stated inventories are stated at the lower of FIFO method or net realizable value.
3.7 Property, plant and equipment

Land are stated at cost. Land improvements, building and improvement, machinery and
equipment, and others are stated at cost net of accumulated depreciation. Depreciation and

amortization are computed by the straight-line method at the rates as follows :

Building structures 20 years
Building and improvement 10 vyears
Machinery and equipment 5-10 vyears
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 3,5,10 vyears
Transportation equipment 5 vyear

3.8 Land not used in operations - at cost
Land not used in operations - at cost are stated at the lowers of cost or net realizable value.
3.9 Intangible Assets, net

Intangible asset consisted of computer software is stated at cost net from accumulated

amortization and impairment loss.
Amortization

Amortization is charged to the statement of income on a straight-line basis from the date that

intangible assets are available for use over the estimated useful lives of the assets for five (5) years.
3.10 Goodwill

The excess of equity in net assets of a subsidiary lower cost is recognized as “Goodwill”
which is stated at cost less accumulated amortization and allowance for impairment. The goodwill
is amortized as expense on the straight-line method over the period of 3 years. Allowance for

impairment recognized impairment loss.
3.11  Impairment

The carrying amounts of the Company’s assets reviewed at each balance sheet date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the assets’

recoverable amounts are estimated.

An impairment loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-
generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. The impairment loss is recognized in the statement of

income.
Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of assets is the greater of the assets’ net selling price and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate cash inflow largely independent of
those from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generation unit to which the

asset belongs.
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Reversals of impairment

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine

the recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation and amortization, if

no impairment loss had been recognized.
3.12 Trade and other accounts payable
Trade and other accounts payable are stated at cost.
3.13 Using of Accounting Estimation

Preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. Actual

results may differ from those estimates.
3.14  Provision

A provision is recognized in the balance sheet when the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the

obligation.
3.15 Expenses
Operating leases

Payments made under operating leases are recognized in the statement of income on a
straight line basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives received are recognized in the statement
of income as an integral part of the total lease payments made. Contingent rentals are charged to the

statement of income in the accounting period in which they are incurred.
Finance costs

Interest expenses and similar costs are charged to the statement of income for the period in
which they are incurred, except to the extent that they are capitalised as being directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
be prepared for its intended use or sale. The interest component of finance lease payments is

recognized in the statement of income using the effective interest rate method.
Other expenses

Other expenses are charged to the statement of income in the period in which they are

incurred.
3.16  Foreign currencies
Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to Thai Baht at the foreign exchange rates

ruling at the dates of the transactions.
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Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date
are translated to Thai Baht at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that date. Foreign exchange

differences arising on translation are recognized in the statement of income.
3.17 Income tax

The Company recognized tax obligations on a tax basis based on the conditions described in

the Revenue Code.
3.18 Related parties

Enterprises and individuals that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries,
control, or are controlled by, or are under common control with, the company, including holding
companies, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries are related parties of the company. Associates and
individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting power of the company that gives them
significant influence over the enterprise, key management personnel, including directors and officers of
the company and close members of the family of these individuals and companies associated with these

individuals also constitute related parties.

In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance

of the relationship, and not merely the legal form.
3.19 Employee benefits

The Company recognized salary, wages, bonuses and contributions to the social security fund

as expenses when incurred.
3.20 Cost of borrowing

Interest expense that arises from the borrowing for the machinery installation project has been
included into the cost price of machinery installation project in progress until the machines are in a ready
to use state for the borrowing made for this specific purpose and interest, the Company has a policy to
capitalize the cost of borrowing into the cost price of assets for every project of machinery installation;

however, it will capture the cost of borrowing as period expense for other asset acquisition.

TRANSACTIONS WITH SUBSIDIARY

A portion of assets, liabilities, revenues, costs and expenses arose from transactions with the subsidiary. The
accompanying company’s financial statements only reflects of these transactions on the basis determined by the
companies concerned, under their policy over such transactions stated that will be compared with market price or fair

value.

Significant transactions occurred between the Company and subsidiary for the years ended December 31,
2007 and 2006 as follows :

(In Thousand Baht)
The Company’s Only

2007 2006

Revenue from sale of goods

AVV Company Limited 27,457 10,294

Annual Report 2007 C.l. Group Public Company Limited



Financial Statement and Notes

Balances with the subsidiary are as follows:

(In Thousand Baht)
2007 2006

Trade accounts receivable

AVV Company Limited 11,899 415

5. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The Company has transactions with related parties. The financial statements reflect the effect of these
transactions on the basis determined by the companies concerned under their policy over sale/purchase of goods

which are stated that they will be compared with market price or fair value.

Significant transactions occurred between the Company and related parties for the years ended December 31,
2007 and 2006 as follows

(In Thousand Baht)

2007 2006
Revenue
Revenue from sale of goods
Lampda Group Co., Ltd. 3,975 6,531

Balances related parties are as follows:

(In Thousand Baht)
2007 2006

Trade accounts receivable

Lampda Group Co., Ltd. 688 1,431

6. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT

The Company’s cash and cash equivalent consisted of:

(In Thousand Baht)

2007 2006

Cash on hand 56 66
Cash in banks - saving accounts 41,381 18,907
Cash in banks - current accounts 14,535 419
Total 55,972 19,392

Saving accounts are carried interest at the floating rate which are set by banks.

7. SHORT TERM INVESTMENT

The Company’s short term investment consisted of:

(In Thousand Baht)
2007 2006

Promissory note - financial company 118,795 -

The Company invested in promissory note from financial company which securities held for trading and interest
rate 2.85 per annum.
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8. TRADE ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - NET

The Company'’s trade accounts receivable consisted of :

Trade accounts receivable from related party

Trade accounts receivable from other parties

Less allowance for doubtful accounts

Net

Financial Statement and Notes

(In Thousand Baht)

2007 2006
12,587 1,846
314,291 253,906
326,878 255,752
(7,903) (9,236)
318,975 246,516

As at December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Company has overdued accounts receivable of 10 accounts which are

aging as follows :

Within credit terms
Overdue :
Less than 3 months
3 to 6 months
6 to 12 months
Over 12 months
Total
Less allowance for doubtful accounts

Net

9. INVENTORIES - NET

Raw materials
Work in progress
Finished goods
Goods in transit
Total
Less provision for diminution of inventory value

Net

(In Thousand Baht)

2007 2006
266,199 190,992
49,599 54,619
1,603 2,225
1,594 504
7,883 7,412
326,878 255,752
(7,903) (9,236)
318,975 246,516
(In Thousand Baht)
2007 2006
160,825 136,185
31,381 45,093
27,436 14,403
460 133
220,102 195,814
(2,785) (2,785)
217,317 193,029

The cost of inventories recognized as an expense and included in “cost of sales” for the years ended
December 31, 2007 and 2006 amounted to Baht 1,015.67 million and Baht 919.59 million, respectively.
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10. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Other current assets consisted of :

(In Thousand Baht)

2007 2006

Prepaid expenses 669 1,134
Value added tax receivable 3,557 63
Others 1,888 3,456
Total 6,114 4,653

11. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

(In Thousand Baht)
Percentage of

. Paid up shares At Cost
ownership
Type of Type of As at As at As at As at As at As at  Dividend
business relation December December December December December December Income

31, 2007 31, 2006 31, 2007 31, 2006 31, 2007 31, 2006

Subsidiary company

AWV Company Manufacturing Shareholding - 35% - 4,000 - 118,000 -
Limited and distributing

of equipment for

air-conditioner

Less Loss of impairment from

Investments subsidiary - (7,760) -
Dividend income - - 3,510
Net - 4,040 3,510

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - NET

The account consisted of :-
(In Thousand Baht)

Balance as at Additions Deductions  Transfer Transfer ~ Balance as at
December (In) (out) December
31, 2006 Write-off 31, 2007
At Cost
Land 24,919 11,864 - - - 36,783
Building structures and improvement 133,578 9,908 - 2,684 - 146,070
Machinery and equipment 313,368 5,087 - 66,702 (168) 384,989
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 16,479 3,411 - - (7) 19,883
Transportation equipment 7,980 7,919 (1,453) - - 14,446
Machinery under installation 6,511 86,776 - - (69,286) 24,001
Total 502,835 124,965 (1,453) 69,286 (69,461) 626,172
Less Accumulated depreciation
Building, structures and improvement (20,251) (7,780) - - - (28,031)
Machinery and equipment (138,869) (27,733) - - 115 (166,487)
Furniture, fixture and office equipment (10,714) (2,518) - - 4 (13,228)
Transportation equipment (4,225) (2,274) 1,424 - - (5,075)
Total (174,059)  (40,305) 1,424 - 119 (212,821)
Property, plant and equipment - net 328,776 413,351
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For the years ended as at 31 December 2007, the Company recorded a portion of the related interest as part of

building under construction in the amount of Baht 1,302,806.98.

As at 31 December 2007 and 2006, the gross carrying amounts of certain fully depreciated fixed assets which
are still in active use and recorded in the financial statements totaling approximately Baht 82.40 million and Baht

82.05 million, respectively.

The Company mortgaged a portion of land, building together with structured thereon and machinery as
collateral for loans obtained from certain financial institutions as discussed in note 16 at the mortgage value of the
Company as at 31 December 2007 and 2006 totaling approximately Baht 1,243.20 million and Baht 815.40 million,

respectively.

LAND NOT USED IN OPRATIONS

In 2002, the Company purchased land at cost and associated expenses totaling Baht 26 million. The Company

is in the process of considering means to generate future economic benefits from such land.

As at 31 December 2007 and 2006, the Company mortgaged land not used in operations as collateral for a
loan obtained from a financial institution as discussed in note 16 at the mortgage value totaling approximately Baht 40

million.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS - NET
Intangible assets is computer software consisted of :

(In Thousand Baht)

15.

Balance as at Additions Deductions Balance as at
December December 31,
31, 2006 2007
At cost 4,475 - - 4,475
Less Accumulated amortization (2,922) (943) - (3,865)
Computer software - net 1,653 (943) - 610

GOODWILL - NET

The part of the net asset value of a subsidiary company that is lower than the value of investment is recorded as
“goodwill”, which is stated at cost less accumulated amortization and allowance for impairment. This goodwill is

recognized as expense on the straight-line method over the period of 3 years.

Goodwill, net of accumulated amortization and allowance for impairment, is presented as part of assets in the

consolidated balance sheets.

(In Thousand Baht)

Balance per Additions Deductions Balance as at
Book as at December 31,
December 2007
31, 2006
Goodwill 7,760 - - 7,760
Less Accumulated amortization - (7,760) - (7,760)
Allowance for impairment (7,760) - 7,760 -
Goodwill - net - (7,760) 7,760 -
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16. INTEREST-BEARING LIABILITIES

Interest-bearing liabilities consisted of :

CURRENT
Bank overdrafts
- Secured

- Unsecured

Short-term loans from financial institutions
- Secured

- Unsecured

Long-term loans from financial institutions

- Secured

- Unsecured

Current portion of hire-purchase liability

Long-term loans from financial institutions
- Secured

- Unsecured

Hire-purchase liability

C.l. Group Public Company Limited

Financial Statement and Notes

(In Thousand Baht)

2007 2006
- 274
- 274
(In Thousand Baht)
2007 2006
50,000 221,000
50,000 221,000
59,514 58,127
59,514 58,127
(In Thousand Baht)
2007 2006
51 609
109,565 280,010
(In Thousand Baht)
2007 2006
169,376 134,553
169,376 134,553
- 51
169,376 134,604
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The periods to maturity of interest-bearing liabilities, excluding hire-purchase liability, were as follows:

(In Thousand Baht)

2007 2006

Within one year 109,514 279, 401
After one year but within five years 152,957 134,553
After five year 16,419 1,750
Total 278,890 413,955

Secured interest-bearing liabilities were secured on the following assets:

(In Thousand Baht)

2007 2006

Fixed deposit 1,465 1,465
Land and land held for future project 62,783 50,919
Building and plant 100,521 97,951
Machinery 103,905 25,221
Total 268,674 175,556

The currency denomination of interest-bearing liabilities was as follows:

(In Thousand Baht)

2007 2006

Thai Baht 278,890 413,955
United States Dollars - -
Total 278,890 413,955

As at 31 December 2007 and 2006, the Company has overdrafts and short-term loans certain local financial
institutions which bear interest at the rates ranging from 2% per annum to 6.87% per annum. Such loans, overdraft
and other credit facility lines are collateralised by the mortgage of land held for future project, a portion of land, and

buildings together with the structures thereon, machinery and fixed deposit.

Under the terms of the trust receipt agreements, certain imported machinery have been released to the
Company in trust of the financial institution. Thus, the Company is accountable to those financial institutions for the

trusted items.

In May 2002, the Company entered into a loan agreement with a local financial institution amounting to Baht 20
million. This loan bears interest at the minimum loan rate (MLR) minus 1% per annum and the repayment of principal
together with interest will be made in monthly installments not less than Baht 309,400 commencing from May 2002
and the last payment will be within May 2009. This loan is collateralized by the mortgage of a portion of the
Company’s land. As at 31 December 2007, loan from such financial institution was paid in April 2007 (2006 : Baht 6.3

million).

In June 2004, the Company entered into a loan agreement with a local financial institution amounting to Baht
18 million. This loan bears interest at the minimum loan rate (MLR) and the repayment of principal will be made in
monthly installments of Baht 500,000 commencing from June 2004 and the last payment will be within June 2007. This
loan is collateralized by the mortgage of portion of the Company’s land and buildings together with the structures
thereon, machinery, fixed deposit and the guarantee by certain directors of the Company. As at 31 December 2007,

loan from such financial institution was paid in September 2007 (2006 : Baht 3.0 million).
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In September 2005, the Company entered into a loan agreement with a local financial institution under the
credit facility totalling Baht 216 million. This loan bears interest at the rate of 4.75% per annum for the first and second
years and at minimum loan rate (MLR) of such local bank minus 1% per annum during the third to the seventh years.
the repayment of principal will be made in 79 equal monthly installments of Baht 2,740,000 each commencing form
February 2006. The loan agreement also prescribes certain terms and conditions relating to financial ratio and the
consecutive allotment of withdrawal at the amount and timing reasonably considered by the lender. The loan is
collateralized by the mortgage of a portion of the Company’s land and building together with the structures thereon

and machinery.

In December 2005, the Company agreed to make additional amendment to the first loan agreement by
changing the interest rate at MLR of the local bank minus 1.25% per annum for the first and second years and minus
1% per annum for the third to the seventh years. The principal repayment is to be repayable monthly in total of 76

installment at Baht 2,850,000 per installment, commencing from April 2006.

In August 2006, the Company agreed to make additional amendment to the second loan agreement for the
subsequent loan amount withdrawn. The principal is to be repayable monthly in total of 72 installment at Baht 250,000

per installment, commencing as from July 2006.

In August 2006, the Company entered into the second loan agreement under the credit line of Baht 70 million
with interest rate at MLR of the local bank minus 1.25% per annum for the first and second years minus 1% per annum
for the third to the fourth years. The principal is to be repayable monthly in total of 39 installments at Baht 1,800,000
per installment, commencing as from April 2007 and guaranteed by the mortgage of assets under the first former loan

agreement.

In November 2007, the Company entered into the third loan agreement under the credit line of Baht 160 million
with interest rate at MLR of the local bank minus 5.50% per annum for the first and second years minus 1% per annum
for the third to the seventh years. The principal is to be repayable monthly in total of 72 installments at Baht
713,888.89 per installment, commencing as from December 2008 and guaranteed by the mortgage of a portion of the

Company’s land and building together with the structures thereon and machinery.

As at 31 December 2007, loan from such financial institution amounted to approximately Baht 228.89 million
(2006 : Baht 183.30 million). In addition, the Company had debt service covenant ratio for the years ended 31
December 2007, which is higher than the ratio as stipulated in the loan agreement, and for the years ended 31
December 2006, which is lower than the ratio as stipulated in the loan agreement. However, the Company obtained

the letter for relaxation on the enforcement of the said ratio from the financial institution for this period.
As at 31 December 2007 and 2006, the Company had unutilized credit facilities totalling Baht 718.59 million

and Baht 332.4 million, respectively.

17. HIRE - PURCHASE LIABILITY

Hire - purchase liability consisted of :

(In Thousand Baht)

2007 2006

Current portion with in 1 year 51 609
Hire purchase liability - 51
Total 51 660
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The Company has entered into a hire-purchase contract with a local company for hire-purchase of a car. This

contract is repayable in 48 equal monthly installments. The ownership of the assets purchased under hire-purchase

contract will be transferred to the Company when the last installment is paid.

18. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Other current liabilities consisted of:

Accrued operating expenses

Payable to Revenue Department

Others
Total

19. WARRANTS

(In Thousand Baht)

2007 2006
11,669 4,669
- 1,799

648 3,778
12,137 10,246

On September 13, 2005 the Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company’s shareholders passed a resolution

to issue 82.5 million warrants for the purchase of the Company’s ordinary shares, free of charge. The warrants to the

existing sharholders, two of which entitles the holder to subscribe to one ordinary share.

Company issued warrants to purchase ordinary shares as at 18 June 2007 of the Company not over 82,500,000

units (CIG-W1) to the existing shareholders at the ratio of two existing shares to one unit of warrants. One unit of

warrant can be exercised for one ordinary share at Baht 3 per share (subject to adjustment of exercise ratio). CIG-W1

has a three - year term from 18 June 2007 and can be first exercised on 28 September 2007 and the last business

day of each quarter starting from 28 September 2007 to 17 June 2009.

During the current period, warrants were exercised to purchase new ordinary shares as follows:

Number of Increase in paid Date of registration Exercise Exercise price
warrants up share of additional shares ratio
capital from  from warrant exercise
warrant exercise with the Ministry
Commerce
(Unit) (Baht) (Baht per
share)
First exercised
Number of warrants issued 82,499,991 -
Exercised during September 2007 (150,000) 150,000 3 October 2007 11 3.00
Outstanding as at 30 September 2007 82,349,991 150,000
Second exercised*

Beginning Balance 82,349,991 -
Exercised during December 2007 (5,350) 5,605 8 January 2008 1:1.04779  2.863
Outstanding as at 31 December 82,344,641 5,605

* The 2" amendment of the right to exercise was because the PO price was lower than 90% of the weighted

average price per share of the Company’s ordinary shares during the 5 business days before the subscription date.
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SHARE CAPITAL

At the extraordinary shareholders’ meeting No. 1/2007 held on July 20, 2007, the shareholders approved to
increase the authorized share capital from Baht 247.50 million (247,500,000 ordinary shares at Baht 1 each) to Baht
350 million (350,000,000 ordinary shares at Baht 1 each). These were approved by the Ministry of Commerce on July
27, 2007.

In September and November 2007, the Company issued share capital increase in total of 150,000 share and
85.50 million shares at Baht 2 and Baht 4.95 per share, respectively, to the directors, the management, existing
shareholders from the exercise of warrants and the general public. From the sale above, the Company had share
premium of Baht 328.44 million (net from related expense of Baht 9.58 million). The Company registered the paid-up

share capital increase with the Ministry of Commerce on October 3, 2007 and November 19, 2007, respectively.

RESERVES
Share premium

Section 51 of the Public Companies Act B.E.2535 requires companies to set aside share subscription monies
received in excess of the par value of the shares issued to a reserve account (“share premium”) Share premium is not

available for dividend distribution.
Legal reserve

Section 116 of the Public Companies Act B.E.2535 requires that a company shall allocate not less than 5% of
its annual net profit, less any accumulated losses brought forward (if any), to a reserve account (“legal reserve”), until
this account reaches an amount not less than 10% of the registered authorized capital. The legal reserve is not

available for dividend distribution.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company’s operations are manufacturing of products and parts for air-conditioners. Management
considers this as an integrated and complementary line of products. For this reason, the management determines that

the Company has only one industry segment.

For geographical segments, the Company manufactures and distributes to domestic and foreign markets.
Domestic and export sales for the years as at 31 December 2007 and 2006 as follow:
(In Million Baht)

Consolidated The Company’s Only

2007 2006 2007 2006
Sale domestic 978.78 793.82 1,009.41 803.94
Sale export 286.52 257.98 191.84 208.31
Total 1,265.30 1,051.80 1,201.25 1,012.25

Interest Expense
(In Million Baht)

Consolidated The Company’s Only

2007 2006 2007 2006
Interest expense to financial institutions 21,794 17,615 21,743 17,569
Finance costs capitalized (1,303) (2,153) (1,303) (2,153)
Net 20,491 15,462 20,440 15,416
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Finance costs for properties under development have been capitalized at rates ranging from 4.5% to 8% per

annum.

24. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Income tax reduction

Royal Decree No. 387 B.E.2544 dated 5 September 2001 grants companies listed on the Stock Exchange of
Thailand under the regulation of the Stock Exchange of Thailand governing the approval of listed companies on the
Market for Alternative Investment (MAI) a reduction in the corporate income tax rate from 30% to 20% for the five
consecutive accounting periods beginning on or after enactment. The Company has, accordingly, calculated income

tax on its taxable profit at the 20% corporate income tax rate.

25. REVENUE REPORTING OF A PROMOTED INDUSTRY

Based on the Announcement of the Board of the Investment No. Por. 14/1998 dated December 30, 1998
regarding revenue reporting of a promoted industry, the Company is required to report the revenue from sales and
rendering of services separately between the promoted and non-promoted businesses. For the year ended December
31, 2007, the required information is as follows:

(In Thoussand Baht)

The Company’s Statements of Income Only

Promoted business Non-promoted business Total
right for except
tax income
Revenues
Revenue form sales rendering of services 14,389 1,186,863 1,201,252
Other income - 46,532 46,532
Total revenues 14,389 1,233,395 1,247,784
Expenses
Cost of sales and rendering of services 15,641 1,000,029 1,015,670
Selling and administrative expenses 942 76,668 77,610
Total expenses 16,583 1,076,697 1,093,280
Profit (loss) before interest and income tax expenses (2,194) 156,698 154,504
Interest tax expense 1,707 18,733 20,440
Income tax expense - 26,735 26,735
Net profit (loss) (3,901) 111,230 107,329

26. PROMOTIONAL PRIVILEGES

In August 2005, By virtue of the provisions of the Industrial Investment Promotion Act of B.E. 2520, the
Company has been granted privileges by the Board of Investment relating to manufacturing of coils as parts or

assemblies used for electronic equipment at plant located in Cholburi. The privileges granted include:

a) Exemption from payment of income tax for certain operations for a period of seven years from the dates on

which the income in first derived from such operations.

b) Exemption from payment of income tax for certain operations for a period of seven years from the dates on

which the income is first derived from such operations.

c) Exemption from payment of import duty for raw materials imported for re-exporting for the period of one

year from the first date of importation.
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As a promoted company, the Company must comply with certain conditions and restrictions provided for in

the promotional certificates.

27. DIVIDENDS

At the Board of Director’'s meeting held on 9 November 2007, the board of directors approve the appropriation
of interim dividends of Baht 0.02 per share, amounting to Baht 50,130,000, from the net profit of the three - month
period ended 30 June 2007 and 30 September 2007. The interim dividend was paid to shareholders during 2007.

At the Board of Directors’ meeting held on 24 July 2007, the board of directors approved the appropriation of
interim dividends of Baht 0.10 per share, amounting to Baht 16,500,000, from the net profit of the three-month period
ended 31 March 2007. The interim dividend was paid to shareholders during 2007.

At the Board of Directors’ meeting held on 6 November 2006, the board of directors approved the appropriation
of interim dividends of Baht 0.11 per share, amounting to Baht 18,150,000, from the net profit of the nine-month period
ended 30 September 2006. The interim dividend was paid to shareholders during 2006.

28. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net income for the year by the weighted average number

of ordinary shares which are issued and paid-up during the year.

Consolidated The Company’s Only
2007 2006 2007 2006
Net income for the year (In Thousand Baht) 107,113 15,375 107,329 15,159

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (Share) 175,109,589 165,000,000 175,109,589 165,000,000

Basic earnings per share (Baht per share) 0.61 0.09 0.61 0.09

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Financial risk management policies

The Company is exposed to normal business risks from changes in market interest rates and currency
exchange rates and from non-performance of contractual obligations by counterparties. The Company does not issue

derivative financial instruments for speculative or trading purposes.
Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that future movements in market interest rates will affect the results of the Company’s
operations and its cash flows. Management believes that the interest rate risk is minimal. Hence, the Company and its

subsidiary’s has no hedging agreement to protect against such risk.
Foreign currency risk

The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk relating to purchases and sales which are denominated in
foreign currencies. Management believes that the foreign currency risk is minimal. Hence, the Company and its

subsidiary’s does not use derivative financial instruments to mitigate this risk.
Credit risk

Credit risk is the potential financial loss resulting from the failure of a customer or a counter party to settle its
financial and contractual obligations to the Company as and when they fall due. Management has a credit policy in
place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit evaluations are performed on

customers. At the balance sheet date there were no significant concentrations of credit risk. The credit risk is
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represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the balance sheet. However, management does not

anticipate material losses from its debt collection.
Liquidity risk

The Company monitors its liquidity risk and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate

by management to finance the Company’s operations and to mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.
Fair values

The fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. In determining the fair value of its financial assets and
liabilities, the Company takes into account its current circumstances and the costs that would be incurred to

exchange or settle the underlying financial instrument.
The following methods and assumptions are used to estimate the fair value of financial instruments.

Cash and cash equivalents and receivables-the carrying values are approximate to their fair values due to the

relatively short-term maturity of these financial instruments.

Bank overdrafts and short-term loans from financial institutions and payables the carrying amounts of these
financial liabilities are approximate to their fair values due to the relatively short- term maturity of these financial

instruments.

Long-term loan is at floating interest rate as market interest rate the carrying amount of long-term loan is close
to fair value. Long-term loan is at fixed interest rate for the first and second year. The carrying amount of long-term

loan is close to fair value.

30. COMMITMENTS

a) The Company has an agreement with a foreign company entered into since 1999 whereby the latter will assist
in performing marketing activities in the United States of America and Canada. In consideration thereof, the
Company is committed to pay commission based on certain percentage of sales price surplus as indicated in

the agreement.

b) The Company has a land rental agreement for its warehouse. This agreement is for a period of twelve (12)

years. The annual rental amounts to Baht 360,000.

c) Outstanding obligation as per the machinery purchase contract with an overseas company has the balance of
Baht 54.18 million.

31. CONTINGENT LIABILITY

As at 31 December 2007, the Company was contingently liable to a financial institution for letters of guarantee
issued in favour of a government agency totalling approximately Baht 0.7 million, which was collateralised by the

Company and its subsidiary’s fixed deposit.

32. CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING STANDARD

On January 1, 2007, the Company has changed the accounting policy for investments in associates from the
equity method to the cost method in the separate financial statements, in accordance with the Federation of
Accounting Professions’ announcement No. 26/2006 regarding the accounting practice for Accounting Standard No.
44 : Consolidated Financial Statements and Accounting for Investments in subsidiaries dated October 11, 2006. The
Company has not retroactively adjusted the separate financial statements in the previous year taken for comparison,

because such change has no effect on the financial statements of year 2006. The Company additionally presented
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the “financial statements in which the equity method is applied” in order to conform with the new revised accounting

standard.

33. SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURE OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The company has provided a consolidated balance sheet as supplementary financial statements as at

December 31, 2006 to be presented for comparative purposes.

34. RECLASSIFICATION

Certain amounts in the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2006 have been reclassified to

conform as follows :

(Thousand Baht)
2006
Other non-current assets
Deposit from machinery 1,669
Other non-current assets 19
Total 1,688

35. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These interim financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors of the Company on February 25,
2008.
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Supplementary Information

Major Shareholder
Major Share holder As of December 28, 2007

Shareholder Shares % Shares
1. The 4 Top Management Executive Group and related persons under the provisions of 113,032,275 45.09
Article 258
2. IV Global Securities Plc. 21,366,000 8.62
3. Miss Ratanakamol Poomsanoh 18,849,900 7.52
4. Thai NVDR Company Limited 5,974,000 2.38
5. Miss Sunee Aoonijit 4,640,000 1.85
6. Thai Capital Fund 3,758,000 1.50
7. Mr. Prapoj Polpipatpong 3,739,400 1.49
8. Miss Suwattana Churuangsuk 3,202,500 1.28
9. Mr. Chayut Lieitsaranugul 2,859,600 1.14
10.  Mr. Pirot Sangnoy 2,624,300 1.05
Others 70,604,025 28.17
Total Issued Share Capital 250,650,000 100.00
Thai Shareholders 250,400,000 99.90
Foreign Shareholders 250,000 0.10

Remark 1 : Mr. Aree Poomsanoh, Mr. Taveesak Wangkorkiat, Mr. Wongsawat \Wongsawang, Mr. Theera Poomsanoh

Dividend Policy

Dividend payout ratio to be at least 50 percent of net profit of the separate financial statement after deducting every type
of reserves regarding to the affiliated of the Company and law. However, the dividend payment will depend on the cash flow of the
Company, investment plan of the Company and related company and other necessities in accordance with board of directors’

resolution.
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References Information
C.I.Group Public Company Limited
Registration Number

Business Type

HeadOffice

Address

Telephone

Fax.

Website

Branch
Address

Telephone

Fax.

Registrar

Auditor

Dhamniti Auditing Co.,Ltd.

C.l. Group Public Company Limited

Supplementary Information

0107547000133

Coil Manufacturer

1/1 Moo 7 Bangkuwad Rd., Bangkuwad, Muang, Pathumthani 12000
(66) 2976-5290 Auto 10 Lines, (66) 25698-2331-2
(66) 2976-5023, (66) 2976-5299

http: //www.coilinter.com

789/75 Moo 1 Pinthong Industrial, Nongkham Th., Sriracha Ap.,
Chonburi 20230

0-3829-6920-4

0-3829-6919

Thailand Securities Depository Company Limited
62 SET Building Ratchadapisek Rd.,
Kwaeng/Khet Klongtoey

Bangkok 10110

Tel. (66) 2229-2800

Fax. (66) 2359-1259

Call center : 0-2229-2888

Mr. Pojana Asavasontichai Certified Public Accountant No. 4891
or Mr. Pichai Dutchanapirom Certified Public Accountant No. 2421

or Miss Chantra Wongsriudomporn Certified Public Accountant No. 4996

267/1 Pracharaj Sai 1 Road, Bangsue Bangkok 10800
Tel. (66) 2587-8080 Fax. (66) 2586-0301
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For Shareholders

The Company’s securities listed on the Market for Alternative Investment (MAI)
1. Ordinary Shares, main board (CIG)
2. Warrants (CIG-w1), main board

The exercise for the above warrants

Exercise Right

Exercise Price

Conversion Period

1 unit of warrant : 1 ordinary share, Exempt for the adjustment of Warrant
allotted to existing shareholders

Baht 3.00 per share, Exempt for the adjustment of Warrant allotted to existing
shareholders

Every three months (see below)

CIG’s Financial Calendar 2008

Mar 24 - 30
Mar 31
Jun 23 - 27
Jun 30
Sep 23 - 29
Sep 30
Dec 23 - 29
Dec 30

Application submission of CIG-W1
Exercise date for CIG-W1
Application submission of CIG-W1
Exercise date for CIG-W1
Application submission of CIG-W1
Exercise date for CIG-W1

Application submission of CIG-W1
Exercise date for CIG-W1
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